

**II ERNST & YOUNG** 

Quality In Everything We Do

# Good Group (International) Limited

International GAAP®
Illustrative Financial Statements

Based on International Financial Reporting Standards in issue at 31 August 2007

# **CONTENTS**

Abbrevia	ations and Key	iii
Introduct	tion	1
General 1	Information	8
Independ	lent auditors' report to the shareholders of Good Group (International) Limited	9
Consolid	lated income statement	10
Consolid	lated balance sheet	11
Consolid	lated statement of changes in equity	13
Consolid	lated cash flow statement	15
Notes to	the consolidated financial statements	17
1.	Corporate information	17
2.1	Basis of preparation.	17
2.2	Changes in accounting policy and disclosures	18
2.3	Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions	19
2.4	Summary of significant accounting policies	20
2.5	Future changes in accounting policies	33
3.	Business combinations and acquisition of minority interests	33
4.	Interest in a joint venture	36
5.	Segment information	36
6.	Other revenues and expenses	39
7.	Income tax	41
8.	Discontinued operation	43
9.	Earnings per share	45
10.	Dividends paid and proposed	45
11.	Property, plant and equipment	46
12.	Investment properties	47
13.	Intangible assets	48
14.	Investment in an associate	49
15.	Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives	49
16.	Available-for-sale investments	50
17.	Other financial assets (non-current)	51
18.	Share-based payment plans	51
19.	Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans	
20.	Inventories	56
21.	Trade and other receivables (current)	56
22.	Cash and short-term deposits	57

23	. Issued capital and reserves	58
24	Interest-bearing loans and borrowings	60
25	Provisions	61
26	Government grants	62
27	Trade and other payables (current)	62
28	Other financial liabilities	62
29	Commitments and contingencies.	62
30	Related party disclosures	64
31	. Financial risk management objectives and policies	66
32	Financial instruments	69
33	Events after the balance sheet date	70
Appen	dix 1 - Consolidated Income statement (example of expenses disclosed by nature)	71
Appen	dix 2 - Consolidated Cash flow statement - Direct method	72
Appen	dix 3 – Segment Reporting under IAS 14 Segment Reporting	73
Appen	dix 4 – Illustrative disclosures for an entity that applied IFRS 1 when it first adopted IFRS	78
Appen	dix 5 – Illustrative disclosures for a first-time adopter of IFRS	79
Appen	dix 6 – XBRL: The Exchange Of Interactive Financial Reporting Data	84
Index		87

IASB

# **ABBREVIATIONS AND KEY**

The following styles of abbreviation are used in the International GAAP Illustrative Financial Statements:

International Accounting Standards Board

IAS 33.41	International Accounting Standard No. 33, paragraph 41
IAS 1.BC.13	International Accounting Standard No. 1, Basis for Conclusions, paragraph 13
IFRS 2.44	International Financial Reporting Standard No. 2, paragraph 44
SIC 29.6	Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretation No. 29, paragraph 6
IFRIC 4.6	International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee Interpretation No. 4, paragraph 6
IAS 39.IG.G.2	IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'— Guidance on Implementing IAS 39 Section G: Other, paragraph G.2
IAS 39.AG.71	IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'— Appendix A— Application Guidance, paragraph AG71
ISA 700.25	International Standard on Auditing No. 700, paragraph 25
Commentary	The commentary explains how the requirements of IFRS have been implemented in arriving at the illustrative disclosure.
GAAP	Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

# INTRODUCTION

This publication contains the consolidated financial statements of a fictitious company, Good Group (International) Limited, a manufacturing company with subsidiaries ('the Group'), incorporated and listed in Euroland, with a reporting date of 31 December 2007. Euroland is a fictitious country within Europe, whose currency is euros. The functional currency of the parent and the presentation currency of the Group is euros.

IFRS references are shown on the right hand side of each page of the financial statements indicating the specific IFRS paragraph that outlines the actual accounting treatment or disclosure adopted for that particular line item or block of narrative.

These illustrative financial statements are not intended to satisfy country or stock market regulations in any given jurisdiction and may have to be altered to meet such requirements. These financial statements are illustrative only, and do not attempt to show all possible accounting and disclosure requirements. In case of doubt as to the requirements, it is essential to refer to the relevant source and, where necessary, to seek appropriate professional advice. Please note that, although the illustrative financial statements are intended to illustrate common disclosures expected to be present in the financial statements of a large manufacturing company, they should not be regarded as including every possible disclosure.

#### **International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)**

The abbreviation IFRS is defined in paragraph 5 of the Preface to International Financial Reporting Standards to include 'standards and interpretations approved by the IASB, and International Accounting Standards (IASs) and SIC interpretations issued under previous Constitutions'. Thus, when financial statements are described as complying with IFRS, this means that they comply with the entire hierarchy of pronouncements sanctioned by the IASB including International Accounting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations originated by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee.

#### The International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)

The International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) is a committee appointed by the IASC Foundation Trustees that assists the IASB in establishing and improving standards of financial accounting and reporting for the benefit of users, preparers and auditors of financial statements.

The IFRIC addresses issues of reasonably widespread importance, rather than issues of concern to only a small set of entities. Its interpretations cover both:

- newly identified financial reporting issues not specifically addressed in IFRS; and
- issues where unsatisfactory or conflicting interpretations have developed, or seem likely to develop in the absence
  of authoritative guidance, with a view to reaching a consensus on the appropriate treatment.

## IFRS as at 31 August 2007

The standards applied in these financial statements are the versions that were in issue as at 31 August 2007. It is important to note that these financial statements require continual updating, as standards are issued and/or revised by the IASB. Standards applied in these financial statements are:

 International Financial Rep	porting Standards (IFRS)
IFRS 2	Share-based Payment
IFRS 3	Business Combinations
IFRS 5	Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
IFRS 7	Financial Instruments: Disclosures
IFRS 8*	Operating Segments
International Accounting S	Standards (IAS)
IAS 1	Presentation of Financial Statements
IAS 2	Inventories
IAS 7	Cash Flow Statements
IAS 8	Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
IAS 10	Events after the Balance Sheet Date
IAS 12	Income Taxes
IAS 14	Segment Reporting (illustrated in Appendix 3)
IAS 16	Property, Plant and Equipment
IAS 17	Leases
IAS 18	Revenue
IAS 19	Employee Benefits
IAS 20	Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
IAS 21	The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
IAS 23	Borrowing Costs
IAS 24	Related Party Disclosures
IAS 27	Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28	Investments in Associates
IAS 31	Interests in Joint Ventures
IAS 32	Financial Instruments: Presentation
IAS 33	Earnings per Share
IAS 36	Impairment of Assets
IAS 37	Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
IAS 38	Intangible Assets
IAS 39	Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
IAS 40	Investment Property

Interpretations	
IFRIC 1	Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities
IFRIC 4	Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
IFRIC 5	Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6	Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market – Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
IFRIC 8	Scope of IFRS 2
IFRIC 9	Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10	Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
IFRIC 11*	IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions
SIC 12	Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities
SIC 13	Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers
SIC 15	Operating Leases - Incentives
SIC 21	Income Taxes – Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
SIC 27	Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease
SIC 32	Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs
The following Standards a	nd Interpretations have <b>not</b> been illustrated in these financial statements:
IFRS 1	First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 4	Insurance Contracts
IFRS 6	Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
IAS 11	Construction Contracts
IAS 23 (Revised)	Borrowing Costs
IAS 26	Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
IAS 29	Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IAS 34	Interim Financial Reporting
IAS 41	Agriculture
IFRIC 2	Members' Shares in Co-operative Entities and Similar Instruments
IFRIC 7	Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC 12	Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13	Customer Loyalty Programmes
IFRIC 14	IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
SIC 7	Introduction of the Euro
SIC 10	Government Assistance – No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
SIC 25	Income Taxes – Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders
SIC 29	Disclosure - Service Concession Arrangements
SIC 31	Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

Therefore, users of this publication are advised to verify that there has been no change in the requirements of IFRS between 31 August 2007 and their reporting date.

These financial statements **do not** attempt to comply with local statutory or listing authority requirements or disclosures in any particular jurisdiction.

The pronouncements that have an asterisk (\*) beside them have been early adopted by the Group in 2007.

#### Changes in 2007

The Good Group (International) Limited financial statements have changed since the 2006 edition due to new standards and interpretations issued since 30 June 2006. The following standards and interpretations have been illustrated for the first time in 2007, resulting in consequential changes to the accounting policies and other note disclosures.

#### **IFRS 8 Operating Segments**

IFRS 8 was issued in November 2006 and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. Good Group (International) Limited illustrates early adoption of the standard in 2007. The new disclosures are illustrated in Note 5 Segment Information. Entities that do not early adopt IFRS 8 will continue to apply IAS 14 *Segment Reporting*. Appendix 3 illustrates the disclosures required if IAS 14 is applied rather than IFRS 8.

#### IAS 23 Amendment - Borrowing Costs

The revised IAS 23 *Borrowing Costs* is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and requires capitalisation of borrowing costs that relate to a qualifying asset. The transitional requirements of the standard require it to be adopted as a prospective change from the effective date. Good Group (International) Limited illustrates the disclosure of standards that have been issued but are not yet effective in Note 2.5.

#### IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 9 is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 June 2006 and establishes that the date to assess the existence of an embedded derivative is the date on which an entity first becomes party to the contract, with reassessment only if there is a change that significantly modifies the cash flows. Good Group (International) Limited illustrates application of the interpretation with an amended accounting policy as disclosed in Note 2.

#### IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

IFRIC 10 is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 November 2006 and establishes that an entity must not reverse an impairment loss recognised in a previous interim period in respect of goodwill or an investment in either an equity instrument or a financial asset carried at cost. Good Group (International) Limited illustrates application of the interpretation with an amended accounting policy as disclosed in Note 2.

#### IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC 11 was issued in November 2006 and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 March 2007. Good Group (International) Limited illustrates early adoption of this interpretation as it applies in consolidated accounts, with an amended accounting policy as disclosed in Note 2.

#### IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC 13 was issued in June 2007 and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2008. This Interpretation requires customer loyalty credits to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they are granted. Good Group (International) Limited illustrates the disclosure of interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective in Note 2.5.

#### IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

IFRIC 14 was issued in July 2007 and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2008. This Interpretation provides guidance on how to assess the limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as an asset under IAS 19 *Employee Benefits*. Good Group (International) Limited illustrates the disclosure of interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective in Note 2.5.

The 2006 publication of Good Group (International) Limited illustrated early adoption of the following standards and interpretations that became effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2007:

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
- IAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Financial Statements
- IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

These standards and interpretations have been reflected in this publication as if they were adopted for the first time in 2007.

#### Benchmark and allowed alternative treatments

In some cases, IFRS permits two accounting treatments for like transactions and events, with one treatment described as a benchmark treatment and the other as an allowed alternative treatment. Preparers of financial statements may choose which treatment to adopt.

IAS 8 requires an entity to select and apply its accounting policies consistently for similar transactions, and/or other events and conditions, unless an IFRS specifically requires or permits categorisation of items for which different policies may be appropriate. Where an IFRS requires or permits such categorisation, an appropriate accounting policy is selected and applied consistently to each category. Therefore, once a choice of benchmark or allowed alternative treatment has been made, it becomes accounting policy and must be applied consistently. Changes in accounting policy should only be made if required by a Standard or Interpretation, or if the change results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information.

In this publication, where a choice is permitted by IFRS, the Group has adopted either the benchmark or the allowed alternative treatment as appropriate to the circumstances of the Group. The commentary gives further details of which policy has been selected.

#### Financial review by management

Many entities present a financial review by management that is outside the financial statements. IFRS does not require the presentation of such information, although IAS 1.9 gives a brief outline of what may be included in their annual report.

The content of a financial review by management is often determined by local market requirements or issues specific to a particular jurisdiction. Therefore, no financial review by management has been included for Good Group (International) Limited.

# **Good Group** (International) Limited

# **Consolidated Financial Statements**

**31 December 2007** 

# **GENERAL INFORMATION**

#### **Directors**

M O'Driscoll (Chairman)

M P Boiteau (Chief Executive)

C P Müller

F van den Berg

S K Pinelli

M Evans

S E Sippo

C Smart

P R García

#### **Company Secretary**

J Harris

#### **Registered Office**

Homefire House

Ashdown Square

Euroville

#### Solicitor

Solicitors & Co.

7 Scott Street

Euroville

#### **Bankers**

Bank P.L.C.

George Street

Euroville

#### **Auditor**

Chartered Accountants & Co.

17 Euroville High Street

Euroville

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOOD GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Good Group (International) Limited and its subsidiaries ('the Group'), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007 and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

#### **Auditors' Responsibility**

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### **Opinion**

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2007, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Chartered Accountants & Co. 28 January 2008 17 Euroville High Street Euroville

#### Commentary

The audit report has been prepared in accordance with ISA 700 'The Independent Auditor's Report on a Complete Set of General Purpose Financial Statements'.

#### **CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT**

#### for the year ended 31 December 2007

24	1.46	(a)	(h)	(c)
HJ	1.40	ιaι.	w.	w

	_	2007	2006	
	Notes	€000	€000	IAS 1.46(d), (e)
Continuing operations Sale of goods		192,099	174,164	IAC 10 2E/b)/i)
Rendering of services		17,131	16,537	IAS 18.35(b)(i) IAS 18.35(b)(ii)
Rental income		1,404	1,377	IAS 18.35(c)
Revenue		210,634	192,078	IAS 1.81(a)
Notonido		210,004	102,010	110 1.01(u)
Cost of sales	6.5	(163,816)	(155,443)	IAS 1.88, IAS 1.92
Gross profit		46,818	36,635	IAS 1.83, IAS 1.92
Other income	6.1	1,585	2,548	IAS 1.92
Selling and distribution costs	0.1	(15,085)	(13,202)	IAS 1.92
Administrative expenses	6.5	(18,665)	(13,202)	
	6.2	(1,088)	(13,037)	IAS 1.92
Other expenses	0.2			140.4.00
Operating profit		13,565	11,618	IAS 1.83
Finance revenue	6.4	785	724	IAS 1.81(a)
Finance costs	6.3	(1,627)	(1,561)	IAS 1.81(b)
Share of profit of an associate	14	83	81	IAS 1.81(c), IAS 28.38
Profit before tax		12,806	10,862	IAS 1.83
Tronc Boroto Cun		12,000	10,002	
Income tax expense	7	(3,710)	(3,232)	IAS 1.81(d), IAS 12.77
Profit for the year from continuing operations		9,096	7,630	IAS 1.83
Discontinued operation				
Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year from a discontinued operation	8	220	(188)	IAS 1.81(e), IFRS 5.33(a)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR		9,316	7,442	IAS 1.81(f)
PROFIL FOR THE TEAR		0,010	1,112	()
Attributable to:				
Equity holders of the parent		9,178	7,203	IAS 1.82(b)
Minority interests		138	239	IAS 1.82(a), IAS 27.33
		9,316	7,442	
Earnings per share	9			IAS 33.66
<ul> <li>basic, for profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders</li> </ul>		€0.44	€0.38	
of the parent				
<ul> <li>diluted, for profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders</li> </ul>		€0.43	€0.37	
of the parent				
Earnings per share for continuing operations				
<ul> <li>basic, for profit from continuing operations attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent</li> </ul>		€0.43	€0.39	
<ul> <li>diluted, for profit from continuing operations attributable to</li> </ul>		€0.42	€0.38	
ordinary equity holders of the parent		₹0.42	₹0.30	
standing equity residence of the purent				

#### **Commentary**

IAS 1.88 requires expenses to be analysed by nature of expense or by their function within the entity, whichever provides information that is reliable and more relevant. Good Group (International) Limited has presented the analysis of expenses by function. Appendix 1 illustrates the income statement if the analysis by nature is used.

IAS 33.68 requires presentation of basic and diluted amounts per share for discontinued operations either on the face of the income statement or in the notes to the financial statements. Good Group (International) Limited has elected to show this information with other disclosures required for discontinued operations in Note 8, and elected to show the information for continuing operations on the face of the income statement.

# **CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET**

as at 31 December 2007

IAS 1.46(a), (b), (c)

		2007	2006*	
	Notes	€000	€000	IAS 1.46(d), (e)
ASSETS				
Non-current assets				IAS 1.51
Property, plant and equipment	11	31,411	25,811	IAS 1.68(a)
nvestment properties	12	8,893	7,983	IAS 1.68(b)
ntangible assets	13	6,195	2,461	IAS 1.68(c)
nvestment in an associate	14	764	681	IAS 1.68(e), IAS 28.38
Available-for-sale investments	16	2,141	1,798	IAS 1.68(d), IFRS 7.8(d)
Other financial assets	17	3,887	1,693	
Deferred tax asset		3,007	365	IAS 1.68(d), IFRS 7.8(c)
ererreu tax asset	7	53,674	40,792	IAS 1.68(n), IAS 1.70
current assets		33,014	40,132	IAS 1.51.IAS 1.57
nventories	20	24,875	25,489	IAS 1.68(g)
				107
rade and other receivables	21	27,672	24,290	IAS 1.68(h), IFRS 7.8(c)
repayments		278	165	IAS 1.69
erivative financial instruments	32	152	153	IAS 1.68(d), IFRS 7.8(a)
ash and short-term deposits	22	16,460	14,916	IAS 1.68(i)
		69,437	65,013	
ssets of disposal group classified as held for sale	8	13,056	-	IAS 1.68A(a), IFRS 5.38
OTAL 400FT0		82,493	65,013	
OTAL ASSETS		136,167	105,805	
OUITY AND LIABILITIES				
quity attributable to equity holders of the parent				IAS 1.68(p)
ssued capital	23	22,028	19,453	IAS 1.68(p), IAS 1.75(e)
Chare premium	20	6,353	135	
	22			IAS 1.68(p), IAS 1.75(e)
reasury shares	23	(774)	(774)	IAS 1.68(p), IAS 1.75(e)
Other capital reserves	23	228	228	IAS 1.68(p), IAS 1.75(e)
Retained earnings		38,186	30,900	IAS 1.68(p), IAS 1.75(e)
Other reserves	23	680	(37)	IAS 1.68(p), IAS 1.75(e)
Reserves of disposal group classified as held for sale	8	128		
		66,829	49,905	
Minority interests		713	740	IAS 1.68(o), IAS 27.33
Total equity		67,542	50,645	(-),
lon-current liabilities				IAS 1.51
nterest-bearing loans and borrowings	24	15,078	19,559	IAS 1.68(I)
Convertible preference shares	24	2,778	2,644	IAS 1.68(I)
rovisions	25	1,950	77	IAS 1.68(k)
Government grants	26	3,300	1,400	IAS 1.69, IAS 20.24
Employee benefit liability	19	1,094	655	IAS 1.68(k), IAS 1.75(d)
Other liabilities	13		354	
	7	311		IAS 1.69
Deferred tax liability	7	4,615 29,126	1,850 26,539	IAS 1.68(n), IAS 1.70
current liabilities		23,120	20,339	IAC 151 IAC 160
	07	10.200	21 201	IAS 1.51, IAS 1.60
rade and other payables	27	19,380	21,281	IAS 1.68(j)
nterest-bearing loans and borrowings	24	2,460	2,775	IAS 1.68(I), IFRS 7.8(f)
Other financial liabilities	28	292	303	IAS 1.68(I), IFRS 7.8(e)
Government grants	26	149	151	IAS 1.69, IAS 20.24
ncome tax payable		4,141	4,013	IAS 1.68(m)
Provisions	25	450	98	IAS 1.68(k)
		26,872	28,621	* *
iabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held for sale	8	12,627		IAS 1.68A(b), IFRS 5.38
nabilities allocally associated with the assets classified as field for sale	U	39,499	28,621	1110 1.00n(u), ii 110 0.00
otal liabilities		68,625	55,160	
		136,167	105,805	
OTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES				

<sup>\*</sup> Certain numbers shown here do not correspond to the 2006 financial statements and reflect adjustments made as detailed in Note 3.

#### Commentary

There is no specific requirement to identify on the face of the financial statements whether there have been adjustments made to the amounts disclosed in the prior period financial statements. IAS 8 requires details to be given only in the notes.

Good Group (International) Limited illustrates how an entity may supplement the requirements of the standard so that it is clearer to the reader that the numbers have been adjusted.

In accordance with IAS 1.51, Good Group (International) Limited has presented separate classifications on the face of the balance sheet for current and non-current assets, and current and non-current liabilities. However, IAS 1 requires that entities should present assets and liabilities broadly in order of their liquidity when this presentation is reliable and more relevant.

# **CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY**

IAS 1.46(a), (b), (c)

# for the year ended 31 December 2007

	Attributable to equity holders of the parent										
_	Issued capital (Note 23)	Share premium	Treasury shares (Note 23)	Other capital reserves (Note 23)	Retained earnings	Other reserves (Note 23)	Discontinued operations	Total	Minority interests	Total equity	IAS 1.97(b), (c)
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000		€000	€000	€000	IAS 1.46(d), (e)
At 1 January 2007	19,453	135	(774)	228	30,900	(37)	-	49,905	740	50,645	
Revaluation of land and buildings Depreciation transfer for land and	-	-	-	-	-	592	-	592	_	592	IAS 1.96(b) IAS 16.77(f)
buildings	_	_	_	_	80	(80)	_	_	_	_	IAS 1.96(b)
Net gains on available-for- sale financial investments Net gains on cash	-	-	_	_	-	4	-	4	-	4	IAS 1.96(b) IFRS 7.20(a)(ii)
flow hedges (Note 32)	-	_	_	_	_	55	-	55	-	55	IAS 1.96(b) IFRS 7.23(c)
Foreign currency translation	_	_	_	_	_	(219)	_	(219)	_	(219)	IAS 1.96(b) IAS 21.52(b)
Net gains on hedge of net investment	_	_	_	_	_	186	_	186	_	186	IAS 1.96(b) IAS 39.102(a)
Total income and expense for the year recognised directly in equity Profit for the year					80 9,178	538		618 9,178		618 9,316	IAS 1.96(b) IAS 1.96(a)
Total income and											11.50(u)
expense for the year	-	_	-	-	9,258	538	-	9,796	138	9,934	IAS 1.96(c)
Discontinued operation (Note 8) Issue of share capital	-	-	-	-	-	(128)	128	-	-	_	IFRS 5.38
(Note 23) Exercise of	2,500	6,150	-	-	-	-	-	8,650	-	8,650	IAS 1.97(c)
options (Note 23) Share-based	75	100	_	_	_	-	_	175	-	175	IAS 1.97(c)
payment (Note 18) Transaction costs	<u>-</u> -	_ (32)	- -	- -	-	307 —	- -	307 (32)	- -	307 (32)	IAS 1.97(c) IFRS 2.50 IAS 32.39
Equity dividends (Note 10) Acquisition of minority interests	-	-	-	-	(1,972)	_	-	(1,972)	(30)	(2,002)	IAS 1.95, IAS 1.97(a)
(Note 3)									(135)	(135)	
At 31 December 2007	22,028	6,353	<u>(774)</u>	228	38,186	680	128	66,829	713	67,542	

#### **CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY**

for the year ended 31 December 2006

IAS 1.46(b), (c)

<u>-</u>	Attributable to equity holders of the parent					_				
_	Issued capital (Note 23)	Share premium	Treasury shares (Note 23)	Other capital reserves (Note 23)	Retained earnings	Other reserves (Note 23)	Total	Minority interests	Total equity	IAS 1.97(b), (c)
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	IAS 1.46(d), (e)
At 1 January 2006 (restated)	19,388	-	(774)	228	25,297	(301)	43,838	208	44,046	
Net gains on available- for-sale financial investments Net gains on cash flow						2	2		2	IAS 1.96(b) IFRS 7.20(a)(ii) IAS 1.96(b)
hedges (Note 32)						22	22		22	IFRS 7.23(c)
Foreign currency translation	_	_	_	_	_	(117)	(117)	_	(117)	IAS 21.52(b) IAS 39.102(a)
Net gains on hedge of net investment						59	59		59	IAS 1.96(b)
Total income and expense for the year recognised directly in equity Profit for the year					_ 7,203	(34)	(34) 7,203	239	(34) 7,442	IAS 1.96(b) IAS 1.96(a)
Total income and expense for the year	_		_		7,203	(34)	7,169	239	7,408	IAS 1.96(c)
Exercise of options (Note 23)	65	135	_	_	_	_	200	_	200	IAS 1.97(c)
Share-based payment (Note 18)	_	_	_	_	_	298	298	_	298	IAS 1.97(c) IFRS 2.50
Equity dividends (Note 10)					(1,600)		(1,600)	(49)	(1,649)	IAS 1.95 IAS 1.97(a)
Minority Interest arising on business combination (Note 3)	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	342	342	
At 31 December 2006	19,453	135	(774)	228	30,900	(37)	49,905	740	50,645	

#### Commentary

IAS 1.96 requires entities to present a statement of changes in equity or a statement of recognised income and expense. Good Group (International) Limited has elected to present a statement of changes in equity.

If entities apply the policy in IAS 19 to recognise all actuarial gains and losses in the period in which they occur outside of profit or loss, then IAS 19.93B requires entities to present a statement of recognised income and expense.

Good Group (International) Limited has elected to present all the information required for the statement of changes in equity on the face of the statement. However, transactions with equity holders acting in their capacity as equity holders and the reconciliations of retained earnings, contributed equity and other reserves could alternatively be presented in the notes to the financial statements.

IFRS 2.7 requires entities to recognise an increase in equity when goods or services are received in an equity-settled share-based payment transaction. However, IFRS 2 does not specify where in equity this should be recognised. The Group has chosen to recognise the credit in other reserves.

# **CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT**

# for the year ended 31 December 2007

IAS 1.8(d) IAS 1.46(b), (c)

		2007	2006	IAS 7.10
	Notes	€000	€000	IAS 1.46(d), (e)
Operating activities				IAS 7.18(b)
Profit before tax from continuing operations		12,806	10,862	
Profit/(Loss) before tax from discontinued operations	8	213	(193)	
Profit before tax		13,019	10,669	
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows				
Non-cash:				
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment	11	3,797	3,383	
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets	6	125	174	
Share-based payments expense	18	412	492	
Decrease in fair value of investment properties	12	306	300	
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		(532)	(2,007)	
Other gains and losses		(56)	(57)	
Interest income	6	(785)	(724)	
Interest expense	6	1,627	1,561	
Share of net profit of associate	14	(83)	(81)	
Movements in provisions, pensions and government grants		(489)	106	
Working capital adjustments:		(0.7.40)	(0.104)	
Increase in trade and other receivables		(8,749)	(2,161)	
Decrease in inventories		4,192	2,185	
Increase in trade and other payables		2,694	2,524	140705
Income tax paid		(3,582)	(3,311)	IAS 7.35
Net cash flows from operating activities		11,890	13,053	
Investing activities				IAS 7.21
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		1,990	2,319	IAS 7.16(b)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		(7,655)	(7,325)	IAS 7.16(a)
Purchase of investment properties		(1,216)	(1,192)	IAS 7.16(a)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments		(568)	(225)	IAS 7.16(c)
Proceeds from available-for-sale investments		231	-	
Purchase of intangible assets		(587)	(390)	IAS 7.16(a)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired	3	(370)	(1,450)	IAS 7.39
Disbursement of loans		(1,916)	-	IAS 7.16(e)
Acquisition of minority interests	3	(325)	-	IAS 7.16(c)
Interest received		785	724	IAS 7.31
Receipt of government grants	26	2,951	642	IAS 20.28
Net cash flows used In investing activities		(6,680)	(6,897)	
Financing activities				IAS 7.21
Proceeds from exercise of options		175	200	IAS 7.17(a)
Transaction costs of issue of shares		(32)	-	1110 1 .11 (u)
Payment of finance lease liabilities		(51)	(76)	IAS 7.17(e)
Proceeds from borrowings		2,740	2,645	IAS 7.17(c)
Repayment of borrowings		(149)	(1,784)	IAS 7.17(d)
Interest paid		(1,418)	(1,561)	IAS 7.31
Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent		(1,972)	(1,600)	IAS 7.31
Dividends paid to minority interests		(30)	(49)	IAS 7.31
Net cash flows used in financing activities		(737)	(2,225)	
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		4,479	3,931	
Net foreign exchange difference		43	19	IAS 7.28
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January	22	12,266	8,316	# IO 1 .20
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December	22	16,788	12,266	IAS 7.45

#### **Commentary**

IAS 7.18 allows entities to report cash flows from operating activities using either the direct method or the indirect method. Good Group (International) Limited presents its cash flows using the indirect method. The cash flow statement prepared using the direct method for operating activities is presented in Appendix 2 for illustrative purposes.

Good Group (International) Limited has reconciled profit before tax to net cash flows from operating activities. However, a reconciliation from profit after tax is also acceptable under IAS 7.

IAS 7 permits interest paid to be shown as operating or financing activities and interest received to be shown as operating or investing activities, as deemed relevant for the entity.

Good Group (International) Limited classifies interest received as an investing activity as it relates primarily to investments. Interest paid is classified as a financing activity as it relates to the cost of obtaining financial resources.

# **NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

1.	Corporate information	IAS 1.46(b), (c)
auth	consolidated financial statements of Good Group (International) Limited ('the Company') for the year ended 31 December 2007 were orised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 28 January 2008. Good Group (International) Limited is a limited pany incorporated and domiciled in Euroland whose shares are publicly traded.	IAS 1.126(a) IAS 10.17
The	principal activities of the Group are described in Note 5.	IAS 1.126(b)
2.1	Basis of preparation	
	consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for investment properties, land and buildings,	IAS 1.103(a)
	rative financial instruments and available-for-sale investments that have been measured at fair value. The carrying values of gnised assets and liabilities that are hedged items in fair value hedges, and are otherwise carried at cost, are adjusted to record	IAS 1.108(a)
chan	ges in the fair values attributable to the risks that are being hedged. The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (€000) except when otherwise indicated.	IAS 1.46(d), (e)
	ement of compliance	
	consolidated financial statements of Good Group (International) Limited and all its subsidiaries (the 'Group') have been prepared in ordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).	IAS 1.14
Basi	s of consolidation	IAS 27.12
	consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Good Group (International) Limited and its subsidiaries as at ecember each year.	
	sidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be olidated until the date that such control ceases.	IAS 27.30
	financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent unting policies.	IAS 27.26, 28
All in in fu	tra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated II.	IAS 27.24
state inter	rity interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group and are presented separately in the income ement and within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from parent shareholders' equity. Acquisitions of minority ests are accounted for using the parent entity extension method, whereby, the difference between the consideration and the book of the share of the net assets acquired is recognised in goodwill.	IAS 27.33

#### Commentary

The acquisition of minority interests is not a business combination under IFRS 3 and there is no specific accounting prescribed for this type of transaction in other IFRS. Per IAS 8.10, management must apply judgment to determine a suitable accounting policy for transactions where there is no standard or interpretation that specifically applies. Several approaches may be acceptable but the approach chosen must be consistently applied.

Good Group (International) Limited illustrates the use of the parent entity extension method but other methods may be acceptable.

IAS 1.103(a)

#### 2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows:

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations during the year. Adoption of these revised standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Group. They did however give rise to additional disclosures, including in some cases, revisions to accounting policies.

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
- IAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Financial Statements
- IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2
- IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
- IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Group has also early adopted the following IFRS and IFRIC interpretations. Adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Group. They did however give rise to additional disclosures, including revisions to accounting policies.

- IFRS 8 Operating Segments
- IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The principal effects of these changes are as follows:

IAS 8 28

#### IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the significance of the Group's financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from those financial instruments. The new disclosures are included throughout the financial statements. While there has been no effect on the financial position or results, comparative information has been revised where needed.

#### IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the Group to make new disclosures to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These new disclosures are shown in Note 31.

#### IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

This interpretation requires IFRS 2 to be applied to any arrangements in which the entity cannot identify specifically some or all of the goods received, in particular where equity instruments are issued for consideration which appears to be less than fair value. As equity instruments are only issued to employees in accordance with the employee share scheme, the interpretation had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

#### IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 9 states that the date to assess the existence of an embedded derivative is the date that an entity first becomes a party to the contract, with reassessment only if there is a change to the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows. As the Group has no embedded derivative requiring separation from the host contract, the interpretation had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

#### IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Group adopted IFRIC Interpretation 10 as of 1 January 2007, which requires that an entity must not reverse an impairment loss recognised in a previous interim period in respect of goodwill or an investment in either an equity instrument or a financial asset carried at cost. As the Group had no impairment losses previously reversed, the interpretation had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

#### IFRS 8 Operating Segments

This standard requires disclosure of information about the Group's operating segments and replaced the requirement to determine primary (business) and secondary (geographical) reporting segments of the Group. The Group determined that the operating segments were the same as the business segments previously identified under IAS 14 Segment Reporting. Additional disclosures about each of these segments are shown in Note 5, including revised comparative information.

#### IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The Group has elected to adopt IFRIC Interpretation 11 as of 1 January 2007, insofar as it applies to consolidated financial statements. This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an employee is granted rights to an entity's equity instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the entity buys the instruments from another party, or the shareholders provide the equity instruments needed.

#### 2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

Judgments IAS 1.113

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgment, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

#### Operating Lease Commitments-Group as Lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

#### **Estimates and assumptions**

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

#### Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting date. Goodwill and other indefinite life intangibles are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further details, including a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions, are given in Note 15.

#### Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale and recognises movements in their fair value in equity. When the fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline in value to determine whether it is an impairment that should be recognised in profit or loss. At 31 December 2007 no impairment losses have been recognised for available-for-sale assets (2006: €Nil). The carrying amount of available-for-sale assets was €2.141,000 (2006: €1,798,000).

#### Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value requires determining the most appropriate valuation model for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This also requires determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used are disclosed in Note 18.

#### **Deferred Tax Assets**

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of recognised tax losses at 31 December 2007 was €383,000 (2006: €365,000) and the unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2007 was €1,198,000 (2006: €427,000). Further details are contained in Note 7.

#### Pension and Other Post Employment Benefits

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post employment medical benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. The net employee liability at 31 December 2007 is  $\{1,094,000 (2006: \{655,000\})$ . Further details are given in Note 19.

#### 2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

#### Fair Value of Unquoted Equity Instruments

The unquoted equity instruments have been valued based on the expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics. This valuation requires the Group to make estimates about expected future cash flows and discount rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the unquoted equity instruments at 31 December 2007 was €1,804,000 (2006: €1,798,000). Further details are given in Note 16.

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate used in the calculation of fair value had been 10% higher than management's estimate, the fair value of unquoted equity instruments would have been €24,000 lower than the amount recognised.

#### **Development Costs**

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy in Note 2.4. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management's judgment that technological and economical feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts to be capitalised management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31 December 2007, the best estimate of the carrying amount of capitalised development costs was €2,178,000 (2006: €1,686,000).

#### Provision for Decommissioning

The Group has recognised a provision for decommissioning obligations associated with a factory owned by Extinguishers Limited. In determining the amount of the provision, assumptions and estimates are required in relation to discount rates and the expected cost to dismantle and remove all plant from the site. The carrying amount of the provision as at 31 December 2007 is  $\{1,221,000 (2006: \{Nii\})\}$ .

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate used in the calculations had been 10% lower than management's estimate, the carrying amount of the provision would have been €94,000 higher.

#### **Provisions for WEEE**

The Group recognises a provision for liabilities associated with participation in the market for Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment ('WEEE') in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.4. The Group has made assumptions in relation to historical waste, regarding the level of market participation, the quantity of products disposed of and the expected cost of disposal. In relation to future waste, the Group has made assumptions about the age profile of products in the market and the cost of disposal. At 31 December 2007 the best estimate of the provision for WEEE was €149,000 (2006: €53,000).

#### 2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

# IAS 1.103(a) IAS 1.108(a), (b)

#### Interest in a joint venture

The Group has an interest in a joint venture which is a jointly controlled entity, whereby the venturers have a contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entity. The Group recognises its interest in the joint venture using proportionate consolidation. The Group combines its share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the joint venture with similar items, line by line, in its consolidated financial statements. The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company. Adjustments are made where necessary to bring the accounting policies into line with those of the Group.

Adjustments are made in the Group's financial statements to eliminate the Group's share of unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled entity. Losses on transactions are recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or an impairment loss. The joint venture is proportionately consolidated until the date on which the Group ceases to have joint control over the joint venture.

#### Commentary

Good Group (International) Limited accounts for its interest in the jointly controlled entity using proportionate consolidation. However, IAS 31.38 also permits jointly controlled entities to be recognised using the equity method.

#### Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the IAS 1.46(d) group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to profit or loss with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

IAS 1.108(b)

IAS 21.23(a) IAS 21.28

IAS 21.23(b), (c)

IAS 21.59

Prior to 1 January 2005 the Group had elected to treat goodwill and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition, as assets and liabilities of the Group. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are already expressed in the reporting currency or are non-monetary items and hence no further translation differences occur.

IAS 21.39

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into euros at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and their income statements are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

IAS 21.48

#### Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

IAS 16.73(a)

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

IAS 16.73(a) IAS 16.77

Any revaluation surplus is credited to the assets revaluation reserve included in the equity section of the balance sheet, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation reserve.

IAS 16.39

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained earnings is made for the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets and depreciation based on the assets original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

IAS 16.73(b), (c)

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset as follows:

- Buildings 20 years
- Plant and equipment 5 to 15 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

The asset's residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

#### **Borrowing costs**

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

IAS 239

#### Commentary

Good Group (International) Limited has elected to expense borrowing costs as incurred. However, IAS 23.11 permits capitalisation of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Where an entity elects to adopt the capitalisation method, additional disclosures under IAS 23 are required about amounts capitalised, which have not been illustrated in Good Group (International) Limited.

IAS 23 has been revised for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. See note 2.5 for disclosures of standards issued but not yet effective.

#### **Investment properties**

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

IAS 40.75(a)
IAS 40.75(d)

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

IAS 40.66

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

IAS 40.57

No assets held under operating lease have been classified as investment properties.

IAS 40.75(b)

#### Commentary

Good Group (International) Limited has elected to value land and buildings at fair value in accordance with IAS 16 and investment properties at fair value in accordance with IAS 40.

Both IAS 16 and IAS 40 permit property, plant and equipment and investment properties to be carried at historic cost less provisions for depreciation and impairment. In these circumstances disclosures about the cost basis and depreciation rates would be required. The disclosures illustrated in Good Group (International) Limited include details of the fair value method applied, some of which would not be required.

#### **Business combinations and Goodwill**

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's share in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

IFRS 3.51(b) IFRS 3.54 IFRS 3.55

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

IAS 36.86

When the Group acquires a business, embedded derivatives separated from the host contract by the acquiree are not reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination results in a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.

#### Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

IAS 38.24, 74

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

IAS 38.97 IAS 3888 IAS 38.104

IAS 38.118(d)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

IAS 38.107 IAS 38.109

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

#### Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure on an individual project is recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the asset and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

IAS 38.54 IAS 38.57

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

IAS 38.74

#### Patents and licences

The patents have been granted for a period of 10 years by the relevant government agency with the option of renewal at the end of this period. Licences for the use of intellectual property are granted for periods ranging between 5 and 10 years depending on the specific licence. The licences provide the option for renewal based on whether the Group meets the conditions of the licence and may be renewed at little or no cost to the Group (further details are given in Note 13). As a result those licences are assessed as having an indefinite useful life.

IAS 38.122(a)

A summary of the policies applied to the Group's intangible assets is as follows:

**Development Costs** Licences **Patents Useful lives** Indefinite **Finite Finite Amortisation Method used** No amortisation Amortised on a straight line Amortised over the period of expected basis over the period of the future sales from the related project on a straight line basis patent Internally generated or Acquired Acquired Internally generated acquired

IAS 38.118(a), (b)

#### Investment in an associate

The Group's investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

IAS 28.13

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortised. The income statement reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Where there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

IAS 28.37(e) IAS 28.26

#### Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

IAS 36.9

IAS 36.55

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to equity. In this case the impairment is also recognised in equity up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

145 36 60

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

IAS 36.110 IAS 36.114

IAS 36 117 IAS 36.119

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

#### Goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators that goodwill is impaired at each reporting date. Goodwill is tested for impairment, annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is less than their carrying amount an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.

#### Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as of 31 December either individually or at the cash generating unit level, as appropriate.

IAS 36.10(a)

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss of the Group's investment in its associates. The Group determines at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If this is the case the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the fair value of the associate and the acquisition cost and recognises the amount in profit or loss.

IAS 28.31

#### **Commentary**

IAS 36.96 permits the annual impairment test for goodwill to be performed at any time during the year provided it is at the same time each year.

#### Investments and other financial assets IFRS 7.21 IAS 39.9 Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they IAS 39.43 are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year end. IAS 39.9 All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Group commits to IAS 39.38 purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. IAS 39.9 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IAS 39.46 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives, including IAS 39AG14 separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments or a IAS 39.55(a) financial guarantee contract. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host contracts when the Group first becomes party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required. IAS 39.9 Held-to-maturity investments Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when the IAS 39.56 Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement held-to-maturity investments are measured at IAS 39.46(b) amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. IAS 39.9 Loans and receivables Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. IAS 39.46(a) After initial measurement loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for IAS 39.56 impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. IAS 399 Available-for-sale financial investments IAS 39.46 Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not IAS 39.55(b) classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair IAS 3967 value with unrealised gains or losses recognised directly in equity until the investment is derecognised or determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded in equity is recognised in profit or loss. Fair value The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid IAS 39.48A prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined IFRS 7.27

#### Amortised cost

Held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost. This is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions; reference to the current market value

of another instrument which is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

#### Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

IAS 39.58

#### Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (ie the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognised in profit or loss.

IAS 39.65

IAS 39.63

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

IFRS 7.37(b)

#### Available-for-sale financial investments

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss. Reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

IAS 39.67 IAS 39.68 IAS 39.69

IAS 39.70

#### **Inventories**

Raw materials

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

IAS 2.36(a) IAS 2.9

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

IAS 2.25

Finished goods and work in progress

 cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs IAS 2.12 IAS 2.13

Cost of inventories include the transfer from equity of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges in respect of the purchases of raw materials.

IAS 39.98(b)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

purchase cost on a first in, first out basis;

IAS 2.6
IAS 32.33

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on

the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

IAS 7.6

Cash and short term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

IAS 7.46

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

#### Commentary

Good Group (International) Limited has included bank overdrafts within cash and cash equivalents as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management.

Financial liabilities	IFRS 7.21
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	IAS 39.43
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs, and have not been designated 'as at fair value through profit or loss'.	
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.	IAS 39.47
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.	IAS 39.56
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss	IAS 39.9
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.	
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.  Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.	IAS 39.AG14 IAS 39.55(a)
Financial guarantee liabilities	IAS 39.47(c)
Financial guarantee liabilities issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.  Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date and the amount initially recognised.	11.0 35.41 (b)
Convertible preference shares	
The component of the convertible preference shares that exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the balance sheet, net of transaction costs. The corresponding dividends on those shares are charged as interest expense in profit or loss.  On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non convertible bond; and this amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.	IFRS 7.21 IAS 32.18 IAS 32.28 IAS 32.35 IAS 32.AG31(a)
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in shareholders' equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.	
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are first recognised.	IAS 32.38
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities	1710 02.00
Financial assets	IEDC 7 04
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;	IFRS 7.21 IAS 39.17(a)
• the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass through' arrangement; or	IAS 39.18(b)
• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.	
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all	
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.	IAS 39.20(c) IAS 39.30(a)
When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.	IAS 39.30(b)
Financial liabilities	IAS 39.39
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.	
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.	IAS 39.41

#### **Provisions**

#### General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

# IAS 37.14

IAS 37.53 IAS 37.54 IAS 37.45 IAS 37.47

IAS 37.60 IAS 16.16(c) IAS 37.45 IAS 37.47 IFRIC 1.8

IAS 37.59

IFRIC 1.6

#### Decommissioning liability

The provision for decommissioning costs arose on construction of a manufacturing facility for the production of fire retardant materials. A corresponding asset is recognised in plant and equipment. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in profit or loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

#### Greenhouse gas emissions

The Group receives free emission rights in certain European countries as a result of the European Emission Trading Schemes. The rights are received on an annual basis and in return the Group is required to remit rights equal to its actual emissions. The Group has adopted the net liability approach to the emission rights granted. Therefore, a provision is only recognised when actual emissions exceed the emission rights granted and still held. The emission costs are recognised as other operating costs. Where emission rights are purchased from other parties, they are recorded at cost, and treated as a reimbursement right, whereby they are matched to the emission liabilities and remeasured to fair value.

#### Commentary

IFRIC 3 *Emission Rights* was withdrawn in June 2005 as the IASB is developing guidance on accounting for emission rights. In the absence of specific guidance, management must develop an accounting policy that is relevant and reliable. The requirements of IFRIC 3 can still be applied by entities, although it has been withdrawn.

Good Group (International) Limited has applied the net liability approach based on IAS 20.23. However, emission rights received could also be recognised as intangible assets with all the disclosures required by IAS 38.

#### Waste Electric and Electronic Equipment (WEEE)

The Group is a provider of electrical equipment that falls under the EU Directive on Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment. The directive distinguishes between the waste management of equipment sold to private households prior to a date as determined by each Member State (historical waste) and waste management of equipment sold to private households after that date (new waste). A provision for the expected costs of management of historical waste is recognised when the Group participates in the market during the measurement period as determined by each Member State, and the costs can be reliably measured. These costs are recognised as other operating costs in profit or loss.

With respect to new waste, a provision for the expected costs is recognised when products that fall within the directive are sold and the disposal costs can be reliably measured. Derecognition takes place when the obligation expires, is settled or is transferred. These costs are recognised as part of costs of sales.

With respect to equipment sold to entities other than private households, a provision is recognised when the Group becomes responsible for the costs of this waste management, with the costs recognised as other operating costs or cost of sales as appropriate.

#### Commentary

The EU Directive on Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment states that the cost of waste management for historical household equipment should be borne by producers of that type of equipment that are in the market during a period specified by the applicable legislation of each Member State (the measurement period).

IFRIC 6 *Liabilities arising from Participation in a Specific Market–Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment* clarifies that the obligating event for recognition of a provision is the participation in the market during the measurement period.

#### Pensions and other post employment benefits

The Group operates two defined benefit pension plans, both of which require contributions to be made to separately administered funds. The Group has also agreed to provide certain additional post employment healthcare benefits to senior employees in the United States. These benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognised over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plans.

IAS 19.120A(d)

IAS 19.64 IAS 19.92 IAS 19.93

IAS 19.96 IAS 19.120A(a)

The past service cost is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognised immediately.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation less past service cost not yet recognised and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. The value of any asset is restricted to the sum of any past service cost not yet recognised and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan.

#### Commentary

The Group's policy for defined benefit plans is to only recognise actuarial gains and losses when the net cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses exceed 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets at the date. However IAS 19 also allows other recognition policies. Where the entity elects to recognise all actuarial gains and losses directly in equity, a statement of recognised income and expenses is required.

#### Share-based payment transactions

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments ('equity-settled transactions'). Employees working in the business development group are granted share appreciation rights, which can only be settled in cash ('cash-settled transactions').

IFRS 2.44

In situations where equity instruments are issued and some or all of the goods or services received by the entity as consideration cannot be specifically identified, they are measured as the difference between the fair value of the share-based payment and the fair value of any identifiable goods or services received at the grant date.

IFRIC 8.11

#### Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees, for awards granted after 7 November 2002, is measured by reference to the fair value at the date on which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using an appropriate pricing model, further details of which are given in Note 18.

IFRS 2.10, 45, 53

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award ('the vesting date'). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The profit or loss charge or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

IFRS 2.45

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

IFRS 2.19, 20, 21

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense as if the terms had not been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

IFRS 2.27

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

IFRS 2.28

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share (further details are given in Note 9).

IAS 33.45

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)	
Cash-settled transactions	IFRS 2.53
The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at the grant date using a binomial model, further details of which are given in Note 18. This fair value is expensed over the period until vesting with recognition of a corresponding liability. The liability is remeasured at each balance sheet date up to and including the settlement date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.	IFRS 2.30, 32, 33
Leases	IFRIC 4.6
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.	
For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January 2005 in accordance with the transitional requirements of IFRIC 4.	
Group as a lessee	
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are reflected in profit or loss.	IAS 17.8 IAS 17.20 IAS 17.25
Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.	IAS 17.27
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.	IAS 17.33
Group as a lessor	
Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.	IAS 17.8 IAS 17.52
Revenue recognition	IAC 10 2E(a)
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duty. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:	IAS 18.35(a) IAS 18.14 IAS 18.20
Sale of goods	
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.	IAS 18.14
Revenue from the installation of fire extinguishers, fire prevention equipment and fire retardant fabrics is recognised by reference to the stage of completion. Stage of completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours for each contract. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.	IAS 18.20 IAS 18.26
Interest income	IAS 18.30(a)
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest rate, that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).	IAS 18.30(c)
Dividends Revenue is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established.	
Rental income	
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease terms.  Government grants	IAS 17.50
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal annual amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.	IAS 20.7 IAS 20.12 IAS 20.26

Where the Group receives non-monetary grants, the asset and that grant are recorded at nominal amounts and released to profit or loss

over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

30

#### 2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

#### **Taxes**

#### Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

IAS 12.46 IAS 12.47

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in profit or loss.

#### Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

IAS 12.39

 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

IAS 12.24

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

- where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
  or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
  profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
  ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
  reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

IAS 12.44

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

IAS 12.56 IAS 12.37

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

IAS 12.47

Deferred income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in profit or loss.

IAS 12.61

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

IAS 12.74

## Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:

IAS 18.8

- where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
- receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

## Derivative financial instruments and hedging

IAS 39.43

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

IAS 39.55(a)

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives during the year that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to profit or loss.

IFRS 7.27(a)

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles. The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is determined by reference to market values for similar instruments.

IFRS 7.27(b)

### 2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

IFRS 7.22(a)

- fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment (except for foreign currency risk); or
- cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
  recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
  commitment; or
- hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

IFRS 7.22(b) IAS 39.88

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges IAS 39.89

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised in profit or loss. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as a part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in profit or loss.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, the adjustment to carrying value is amortised through the profit or loss over the remaining term to maturity. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged financial instrument for which the effective interest rate method is used, is amortised through profit or loss.

IAS 39.92

Amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and shall begin no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedge item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument are also recognised in profit or loss.

IAS 39.93

### Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in equity, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

IAS 38.95

Amounts taken to equity are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

IAS 39.97, 100

If the forecast transaction or firm commitment is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognised in equity are transferred to profit or loss. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised in equity remain in equity until the forecast transaction or firm commitment occurs.

IAS 39.101

#### Hedges of a net investment

IAS 39.102

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the net investment, are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised directly in equity while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are recognised in profit and loss. On disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recognised directly in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

#### 2.5 Future changes in accounting policies

### Standards issued but not yet effective

#### IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

IAS 8.30

A revised IAS 23 Borrowing costs was issued in March 2007, and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The standard has been revised to require capitalisation of borrowing costs when such costs relate to a qualifying asset. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. In accordance with the transitional requirements in the Standard, the Group will adopt this as a prospective change. Accordingly, borrowing costs will be capitalised on qualifying assets with a commencement date after 1 January 2009. No changes will be made for borrowing costs incurred to this date that have been expensed.

#### IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC Interpretation 12 was issued in November 2006 and becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008. This Interpretation applies to service concession operators and explains how to account for the obligations undertaken and rights received in service concession arrangements. No member of the Group is an operator and hence this Interpretation will have no impact on the Group.

#### IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

IFRIC Interpretation 13 was issued in June 2007 and becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008. This Interpretation requires customer loyalty award credits to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they are granted and therefore part of the fair value of the consideration received is allocated to the award credits and deferred over the period that the award credits are fulfilled. The Group expects that this interpretation will have no impact on the Group's financial statements as no such schemes currently exist.

#### IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

IFRIC Interpretation 14 was issued in July 2007 and becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008. This Interpretation provides guidance on how to assess the limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as an asset under IAS 19 *Employee Benefits*. The Group expects that this Interpretation will have no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group as all defined benefit schemes are currently in deficit.

### 3. Business combinations and acquisition of minority interests

# Acquisitions in 2007

IFRS 3.66(a) IFRS 3.67(a), (b), (c)

Acquisition of Extinguishers Limited

On 1 May 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of Extinguishers Limited, an unlisted company based in Euroland specialising in the manufacture of fire retardant fabrics.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Extinguishers Limited as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition were:

	€000 Fair value recognised on acquisition	€000 Previous carrying value	IFRS 3.67(f) IAS 7.40(d)
Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) Cash and cash equivalents Trade receivables	7,042 230 1,736	5,384 230 1,736	
Inventories Patents and licences (Note 13)	3,578 1,200 13,786	2,179 — 9,529	<u>-</u>
Trade payables Provision for operating lease costs (Note 25) Provision for restructuring (Note 25) Provision for decommissioning costs (Note 25) Deferred income tax liability	(2,180) (400) (500) (1,200) (2,273) (6,553)	(2,180) - (500) (1,200) (1,347) (5,227)	<u>-</u>
Net assets Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 13) Total consideration	7,233 2,017 <b>9,250</b>	4,302	= 

#### 3. Business combinations and acquisition of minority interests (continued)

The total cost of the combination was  $\P$ ,250,000 and comprised an issue of equity instruments and costs directly attributable to the combination. The Group issued 2,500,000 ordinary shares with a fair value of  $\P$ 3.46 each, being the published price of the shares of Good Group (International) Limited at the date of exchange.

IFRS 3.24 IFRS 3.67(d)(i) IFRS 3.67(d)(ii)

Cost:

Shares issued, at fair value Costs associated with the acquisition Total	€000 8,650 600 <b>9,250</b>	_ IAS 7.40(a)
Cash outflow on acquisition:		
	€000	
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary	230	IAS 7.40(c)
Cash paid	(600)	IAS 7.40(b)

From the date of acquisition, Extinguishers Limited has contributed €750,000 to the net profit of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, the profit for the Group would have been €10,709,000 and revenue from continuing operations would have been €239,930,000.

IFRS 3.67(i) IFRS 3.70(b) IFRS 3.70(a) IFRS 3.67(h)

(370)

Prior to the acquisition, Extinguishers Limited had decided to eliminate certain product lines (further details are given in Note 25). The restructuring provision recognised above was a present obligation of Extinguishers Limited immediately prior to the business combination and its execution was not conditional upon it being acquired by Good Group (International) Limited.

The goodwill of €2,017,000 comprises the fair value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition and a customer list, which is not separately recognised. Due to the contractual terms imposed on acquisition, the customer list is not separable and therefore does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset under IAS 38 Intangible assets.

## **Commentary**

Net cash outflow

IFRS 3.36 requires the acquirer to allocate the cost of a business combination by recognising the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. IFRS 3.37 requires contingent liabilities to be recognised if the fair value can be reliably measured.

The existence of contingent liabilities was considered in the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited. The possibility of an outflow of economic resources was considered and the fair value of the contingent liability was deemed to be almost zero. As a result, no contingent liability was recognised.

If the initial accounting for a business combination has been determined provisionally, IFRS 3.69 requires entities to disclose this fact.

#### Minority Interest in Lightbulbs Limited

On 1 October 2007, the Group acquired an additional 7.4% of the voting shares of Lightbulbs Limited, taking its ownership to 87.4%. Cash consideration of €325,000 was paid. The book value of the net assets of Lightbulbs at this date was €1,821,000, and the book value of the additional interest acquired was €135,000. The difference of €190,000 between the consideration and the book value of the interest acquired, has been recognised as goodwill (Note 13).

## **Commentary**

To enable the reader to understand what amount has been accounted for as goodwill under the parent entity extension method Good Group (International) Limited has disclosed information about the consideration paid as well as the value of the net assets at the date of the acquisition, although no standard requires this.

### 3. Business combinations and acquisition of minority interests (continued)

#### **Acquisitions in 2006**

On 1 December 2006, the Group acquired 80% of the voting shares of Lightbulbs Limited, a company based in Euroland, specialising in the production and distribution of lightbulbs.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Lightbulbs Limited as at the date of acquisition were:

	€000	€000	IFRS 3.73(b)
	Fair value recognised on acquisition (Restated)	Previous carrying value	IAS 7.40(d)
Land and buildings (Note 11)	1,280	247	
Cash and cash equivalents	50	50	
Trade receivables	853	853	
Inventories	765	765	
	2,948	1,915	<del>-</del>
Trade payables	(807)	(807)	
Deferred income tax liability	(380)	`(70)	
Provision for maintenance warranties	(50)	(50)	
Equity minority interests	(342)	(198)	
	(1,579)	(1,125)	<u>-</u>
Net assets	1,369	790	=
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 13)	131		IFRS 3.24
Consideration, satisfied by cash	1,500		IFRS 3.67(d)
Cash flow on acquisition:		€000	IAS 7.40(a)
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary		50	IAS 7.40(c)
Cash paid		(1,500)	IAS 7.40(b)
Net cash outflow		(1,450)	-

The fair value adjustments at 31 December 2006 were provisional as the Group had sought an independent valuation for the land and buildings owned by Lightbulbs Limited. The results of this valuation had not been received at the date the 2006 accounts were approved for issue by management.

The valuation of the land and buildings was received in April 2007 and showed that the fair value at the date of acquisition was €1,280,000, an increase of €200,000 compared to the provisional value.

The 2006 comparative information has been restated to reflect this adjustment. The value of the land and buildings increased by €200,000, there was an increase in the deferred tax liability of €60,000 and an increase in the minority interest of €28,000. There was also a corresponding reduction in goodwill of €112,000, to give total goodwill arising on the acquisition of €131,000. The increased depreciation charge on the buildings from the acquisition date to 31 December 2006 was not material.

Lightbulbs Limited has contributed €20,000 from the date of acquisition (1 December 2006) to 31 December 2006 to the net profit of the group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, the profit for the group for 2006 would have been €7,850,000 and revenue from continuing operations would have been €198,078.

The goodwill of €131,000 comprises the fair value of expected synergies arising from acquisition.

IFRS 3.73(b)

IFRS 3.67(i)

IFRS 3.70(a), (b)

IFRS 3.67(h)

### 4. Interest in a joint venture

Good Group (International) Limited has a 50% interest in Showers Limited, a jointly controlled entity which is involved in the manufacture IAS 31.56 of fire prevention equipment in Euroland.

The share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the jointly controlled entity at 31 December 2007 and 2006 and for the years then ended, which are included in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

	2007	2006
	€000	€000
Current assets	1,613	1,404
Non-current assets	1,432	1,482
	3,045	2,886
Current liabilities	(112)	(551)
Non-current liabilities	(510)	(500)
	2,423	1,835
Revenue	30,047	29,438
Cost of sales	(27,244)	(26,710)
Administrative expenses	(1,319)	(1,293)
Finance costs	(102)	(100)
Profit before income tax	1,382	1,335
Income tax expense	(794)	(778)
Net profit	588	557

### 5. Segment information

For management purposes, the group is organised into business units based on their products and services, and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

IFRS 8.22(a) IFRS 8.22(b)

The fire prevention equipment segment produces and installs extinguishers, fire prevention equipment and fire retardant fabrics.

The electronics segment is a supplier of electronic equipment for defence, aviation, electrical safety markets and consumer electronic equipment for home use. It offers products and services in the areas of electronics, safety, thermal, and electrical architecture.

The investment property segment leases offices and manufacturing sites owned by the Group which are surplus to the Group's requirements.

The rubber equipment segment produces rubber hosepipes for commercial applications. This segment has been classified as a discontinued operation in the current year. Refer to note 8 for further information.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in certain respects, as explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. Group financing (including finance costs and finance revenue) and income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm's length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

IFRS 8.27(a)

### 5. Segment information (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2007  Revenue Third party Inter-segment Total revenue	Fire prevention equipment €000  139,842	Electronics €000 69,388 7,465 <b>76,853</b>	Investment property €000 1,404 1,404	Rubber equipment €000 42,809 — 42,809	Adjustments and eliminations	Consolidated €000 210,634 — 210,634	IFRS 8.23(a) IFRS 8.23(b)
Results Depreciation and amortisation Share of profit of an associate Segment profit	3,428 83 10,208	389 	- - 321	105 	(105) <sup>3</sup> (1,433) <sup>4</sup>	3,817 83 12,806	IFRS 8.23(e) IFRS 8.23(g) IFRS 8.23
Assets Investment in associate Capital expenditure <sup>7</sup> Operating assets	764 15,849 <b>53,001</b>	2,842 44,764	1,216 18,467	13,056	- - 6,879 <sup>5</sup>	764 19,907 <b>136,167</b>	IFRS 8.24(a) IFRS 8.24(b) IFRS 8.23
Operating liabilities	16,922	7,072	4,704	12,627	27,300 <sup>6</sup>	68,625	IFRS 8.23

1. Discontinued operations are shown separately in the income statement as a one-line item 'Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year from a discontinued operation'.

IFRS 8.28

- 2. Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.
- 3. Depreciation and amortisation related to discontinued operations is not included in consolidated operating profit before tax.
- Segment operating profit does not include finance revenue (€785,000) or finance costs (€1,627,000). Segment operating profit 4. does include profit from discontinued operations (€412,000), profit from inter-segment sales (€175,000) and gains and losses from available-for-sale financial assets (€2,000).
- Segment assets do not include deferred tax (€383,000), loans to associates (€200,000), Directors' loan (€13,000), loan notes 5. (€3,674,000) goodwill (€2,457,000) and derivatives (€152,000) as these assets are managed on a group basis.
- 6. Segment liabilities do not include deferred tax (€3,103,000), current tax payable (€4,664,000), bank loans (€16,550,000), convertible preference shares (€2,778,000) and derivatives (€205,000) as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
- 7. Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties.

#### 5. Segment information (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2006	Fire prevention equipment	Electronics	Investment property	Rubber equipment	Adjustments and eliminations	Consolidated	
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	
Revenue							
Third party	123,905	66,796	1,377	45,206	(45,206) <sup>1</sup>	192,078	IFRS 8.23(a)
Inter-segment		7,319			$(7,319)^2$		IFRS 8.23(b)
Total revenue	123,905	74,115	1,377	45,206	(52,525)	192,078	
Results Depreciation and					(22 H)		
amortisation	2,460	472	_	324	$(324)^3$	2,932	IFRS 8.23(e)
Share of profit of an associate	81					81	IEDC 0 00/~)
		E 206	214	(110)			IFRS 8.23(g)
Segment profit	6,076	5,396	314	(110)	(814)4	10,862	IFRS 8.23
Assets Investment in							
associate Capital	681	_	_	_	_	681	IFRS 8.24(a)
expenditure <sup>7</sup>	5,260	4,363	1,192	_	_	10,815	IFRS 8.24(b)
Operating assets	41,864	40,159	9,887	11,587	2,308 <sup>5</sup>	105,805	IFRS 8.23
Operating liabilities	8,506	3,886	1,688	12,378	28,702 <sup>6</sup>	55,160	IFRS 8.23

- 1. Discontinued operations are shown separately in the income statement as a one-line item 'Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year from a discontinued operation'.
- IFRS 8.28

- 2. Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.
- 3. Depreciation and amortisation related to discontinued operations is not included in consolidated operating profit before tax.
- 4. Segment operating profit does not include finance revenue (€724,000) or finance costs (€1,561,000). Segment operating profit does include loss from discontinued operations (€110,000), profit from inter-segment sales (€85,000).
- Segment assets do not include deferred tax (€365,000), Directors' Ioan (€8,000), Ioan notes (€1,685,000) or goodwill 5. (€250,000) as these assets are managed on a group basis.
- 6. Segment liabilities do not include deferred tax (€451,000), current tax payable (€4,013,000), bank loans (€21,340,000), convertible preference shares (€2,644,000) and derivatives (€254,000) as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
- 7. Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties.

### Geographic information

Revenues from exte	rnal customers:		
	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Euroland	201,094	187,228	
United States	52,349	50,056	
Total	253.443	237.284	

The revenue information above is based on the location of the customer.

IFRS 8.33(a)

IFRS 8.33(a)

Revenue from one customer amounted to €45,521,000 (2006: €41,263,000), arising from sales by the fire prevention equipment segment.

IFRS 8.34

### 5. Segment information (continued)

Non-current assets:	IFRS 8.33(b)
---------------------	--------------

Total	46,499	36,255
United States	9,300	7,251
Euroland	37,199	29,004
	€000	€000
	2007	2006

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property.

## Commentary

Interest revenue and interest expense has not been disclosed by segment as these items are managed on a group basis, and are not provided to the chief operating decision maker at the operating segment level.

Disclosure of operating segment liabilities is only required where such a measure is provided to the chief operating decision maker.

Good Group (International) Limited has classified an entire reportable operating segment as discontinuing in the current period. As this operating segment still meets the quantitative thresholds for separate reporting, it continues to be reported in the segment information.

### 6. Other revenues and expenses

#### 6.1 Other income

	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Government grants (Note 26)	1,053	541	IAS 20.39(b)
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment	532	2,007	IAS 1.86
	1,585	2,548	

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching to these grants

### 6.2 Other expenses

	€000	€000	
Bid defence costs	(579)	_ (E3)	IAS 1.86
Cost of WEEE (Note 2.4)  Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising on rental-earning investment	(102)	(53)	
properties	(101)	(353)	IAS 40.75(f)(ii)
Change in fair value of investment properties (Note 12)	(306)	(300)	IAS 1.86
	(1,088)	(706)	

2007

2006

#### 6.3 Finance costs

	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Bank loans and overdrafts	(842)	(792)	
Other loans (including convertible preference shares)	(702)	(728)	
Finance charges payable under finance leases and hire purchase contracts	(40)	(40)	
Provision discount adjustment	(43)	(1)	
Total finance costs (on a historical cost basis)	(1,627)	(1,561)	IFRS 7.20(b)

## 6. Other revenues and expenses (continued)

### 6.4 Finance revenue

	2007 €000	2006 €000	
Income from Ioan to associate (Note 30)	20	_	
Bank interest receivable	580	562	
Income from investments	185	162	
Total finance revenue (on a historical cost basis)	785	724	IFRS 7.20(b)

### 6.5 Depreciation, amortisation, foreign exchange differences and costs of inventories included in the consolidated income statement

Statement			
	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Included in cost of sales:			
Depreciation	3,415	2,476	IAS 1.93
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 11)	_	301	IAS 36.126(a)
Amortisation of development costs (Note 13)	95	124	IAS 1.93
Amortisation of patents (Note 13)	30	50	IAS 1.93
Net foreign exchange differences	(65)	(40)	IAS 21.52(a)
Warranty provision (Note 25)	106	48	
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense	150,283	131,140	IAS 2.36(d)
Included in administrative expenses:			
Depreciation	277	282	
Minimum lease payments recognised as an operating lease expense	250	175	IAS 17.35(c)
6.6 Employee benefits expense			IAS 1.93
	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Wages and salaries	38,205	38,050	
Social security costs	3,854	3,837	
Pension costs (Note 19)	1,395	1,361	
Post-employment benefits other than pensions (Note 19)	153	113	
Expense of share-based payments [including expense arising from transactions accounted for as equity-			
settled share-based payment transactions: €307,000 (2006: €298,000)] (Note 18)	412	492	IFRS 2.51(a)
	44,019	43,853	•
			•

## 6.7 Research and development costs

IAS 38.126

Research and development costs consist of €2,140,000 (2006: €910,000) charged directly to cost of sales in the income statement and €95,000 (2006: €124,000) of amortisation of previously capitalised development costs.

## 7. Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 are:			IAS 12.79
	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Consolidated income statement			
Current income tax:			
Current income tax charge	3,293	3,696	IAS 12.80(a)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year	(18)	(129)	IAS 12.80(b)
Deferred income tax:	, ,	, ,	
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences	435	(335)	IAS 12.80(c)
Income tax expense reported in the income statement	3,710	3,232	
Concellidated atotement of changes in equity			IAC 40 04/-)
Consolidated statement of changes in equity  Deferred income tax related to items charged or credited directly to equity:			IAS 12.81(a)
Net loss on revaluation of cash flow hedges	25	11	
Unrealised gain on available-for-sale financial assets	23	1	
Net gain on revaluation of land and buildings	200	_	
	92	_	
Net dain on hedge of net investment			
Net gain on hedge of net investment		12	
Income tax expense reported in equity	319	12	
Income tax expense reported in equity	319		
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest	319		IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity	319 tic tax rate for the	years ended	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest	319 tic tax rate for the	years ended	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:	319 tic tax rate for the 2007 €000	years ended 2006 €000	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations	319  tic tax rate for the  2007  €000 12,806	years ended 2006 €000 10,862	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation	319  tic tax rate for the  2007  €000  12,806  213	years ended 2006 €000 10,862 (193)	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations	319  tic tax rate for the  2007  €000 12,806	years ended 2006 €000 10,862	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation	319  tic tax rate for the  2007  €000  12,806  213	years ended  2006 €000 10,862 (193) 10,669 3,201	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation Accounting profit before income tax	319  tic tax rate for the  2007 €000 12,806 213 13,019 3,906 (18)	years ended  2006 €000 10,862 (193) 10,669 3,201 (129)	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation Accounting profit before income tax At Euroland's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%)	319  tic tax rate for the  2007 €000 12,806 213 13,019 3,906	years ended  2006 €000 10,862 (193) 10,669 3,201	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation Accounting profit before income tax At Euroland's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%) Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous years Government grants exempt from tax Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses	319  tic tax rate for the  2007 €000 12,806 213 13,019 3,906 (18) (316) (231)	years ended  2006 €000 10,862 (193) 10,669 3,201 (129) (162) (88)	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation Accounting profit before income tax At Euroland's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%) Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous years Government grants exempt from tax Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses Non-deductible expenses	319  tic tax rate for the  2007 €000 12,806 213 13,019 3,906 (18) (316) (231) 196	2006 €000 10,862 (193) 10,669 3,201 (129) (162) (88) 185	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation Accounting profit before income tax At Euroland's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%) Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous years Government grants exempt from tax Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses	319  tic tax rate for the  2007  €000 12,806  213  13,019  3,906  (18)  (316)  (231) 196 166	years ended  2006 €000 10,862 (193) 10,669 3,201 (129) (162) (88) 185 220	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation Accounting profit before income tax At Euroland's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%) Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous years Government grants exempt from tax Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses Non-deductible expenses	319  tic tax rate for the  2007 €000 12,806 213 13,019 3,906 (18) (316) (231) 196	2006 €000 10,862 (193) 10,669 3,201 (129) (162) (88) 185	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation Accounting profit before income tax At Euroland's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%) Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous years Government grants exempt from tax Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses Non-deductible expenses Effect of higher tax rates in the US	319  tic tax rate for the  2007  €000 12,806  213  13,019  3,906  (18)  (316)  (231) 196 166	years ended  2006 €000 10,862 (193) 10,669 3,201 (129) (162) (88) 185 220	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation Accounting profit before income tax At Euroland's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%) Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous years Government grants exempt from tax Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses Non-deductible expenses Effect of higher tax rates in the US At the effective income tax rate of 29% (2006: 31%)	319  tic tax rate for the  2007  €000 12,806 213  13,019  3,906 (18) (316) (231) 196 166 3,703	years ended  2006 €000 10,862 (193)  10,669 3,201 (129) (162) (88) 185 220 3,227 3,232	IAS 12.81(c)(i)
Income tax expense reported in equity  A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by Euroland's domest 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:  Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation Accounting profit before income tax At Euroland's statutory income tax rate of 30% (2006: 30%) Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous years Government grants exempt from tax Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses Non-deductible expenses Effect of higher tax rates in the US At the effective income tax rate of 29% (2006: 31%) Income tax expense reported in the consolidated income statement	319  tic tax rate for the  2007 €000 12,806 213 13,019 3,906 (18) (316) (231) 196 166 3,703 3,710	years ended  2006 €000 10,862 (193) 10,669 3,201 (129) (162) (88) 185 220 3,227	IAS 12.81(c)(i)

#### 7. Income tax (continued)

#### Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax at 31 December relates to the following:

	Consolidated balance sheet		Consolidated income statement		IAS 12.81(g)(i)
	2007	2006	2007	2006	IAS 12.81(g)(ii)
	€000	€000	€000	€000	
Deferred tax liability					
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes	(2,415)	(324)	744	81	
Revaluations of investment properties to fair value	(1,330)	(1,422)	(92)	(90)	
Revaluations of land and buildings to fair value	(254)	_	-	-	
Revaluations of available-for-sale investments to fair value	(77)	(75)	_	_	
Revaluation of a hedged loan to fair value	(11)	_	11	_	
Fair value adjustments on acquisition (2006 restated see Note 3)	(926)	(310)	_	_	
Net gain on hedge of net investment	(92)		<u> </u>	_	
	(5,105)	(2,131)			
·			ı		
Deferred income tax assets	400	50	(40)	(00)	
Post-employment medical benefits	102	59	(43)	(33)	
Pension  Pension	227	137	(90)	(86)	
Revaluation of an interest rate swap (fair value hedge) to fair value	11		(11)		
Revaluations of foreign currency contracts (cash flow hedges) to	11	_	(11)	_	
fair value	5	30	(30)	(45)	
Convertible preference shares	91	55	(36)	(33)	
Losses available for offset against future taxable income	383	365	(18)	(129)	
	819	646	(10)	(123)	
Deferred income tax income/(expense)	020		435	(335)	•
	(4,286)	(1,485)		(000)	ı
Deferred tax liabilities net	(4,200)	(1,460)	i		
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows					
Deferred tax assets	383	365			
		(1,850)			
Deferred tax liabilities - continuing operations	(4,615) (54)	(1,000)			
Deferred tax liabilities - discontinued operations		/1 //05\	•		
Deferred tax liabilities net	(4,286)	(1,485)			

The Group has tax losses which arose in Euroland of €1,198,000 (2006: €427,000) that are available indefinitely for offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they may not be used to offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group and they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time.

IAS 12.81(e)

At 31 December 2007, there was no recognised deferred tax liability (2006: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries, associate or joint venture, as:

IAS 12.87

- (i) the Group has determined that undistributed profits of its subsidiaries will not be distributed in the foreseeable future;
- (ii) the Group has an agreement with its associate that the profits of the associate will not be distributed until it obtains the consent of Good Group (International) Limited. The parent company does not foresee giving such consent at the balance sheet date; and
- (iii) the joint venture of Good Group (International) Limited cannot distribute its profits until it obtains the consent of Good Group (International) Limited. The parent company does not foresee giving such consent at the balance sheet date.

The temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, for which deferred tax liability has not been recognised aggregate to  $\{1,745,000 (2006: \{1,458,000).$ 

IAS 12.81(f)

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends in either 2007 or 2006 by Good Group (International) Limited to its shareholders.

IAS 12.82A

## 8. Discontinued operation

On 1 March 2007, Good Group (International) Limited publicly announced the decision of its Board of Directors to dispose of Hose Limited. Hose Limited manufactures rubber hosepipes and is a separate business segment that is part of the Euroland operations. The business of Hose Limited has been operating in an unpredictable product environment, making it difficult for management to derive real growth and profitability from the segment. The disposal of Hose Limited is due to be completed on 29 February 2008 and as at 31 December 2007 final negotiations for the sale were in progress. As at 31 December 2007, Hose Limited was classified as a disposal group held for sale.

IFRS 5.30 IFRS 5.41

The results of Hose Limited for the year are presented below:

The results of Hose Limited for the year are presented below:			
	2007	2006	IFRS 5.33(b)(i)
	€000		IFRS 5.34
Revenue	42,809	45,206	
Expenses	(42,397)	(45,316)	
Gross profit/(loss)	412	(110)	
Finance costs	(89)	(83)	
Loss recognised on the remeasurement to fair value (Note 11)	(110)		IFRS 5.33(b)(iii)
Loss before tax from a discontinued operation	213	(193)	II NO 0.00(b)(III)
Tax income:	213	(133)	
related to pre-tax profit/(loss)	5	5	IAS 12.81(h)(ii)
related to measurement to fair value	2	_	IAS 12.81(h)(i)
Profit/(Loss) for the year from a discontinued operation	220	(188)	==()(/)
Fronty (Loss) for the year from a discontinued operation	220	(100)	
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Hose Limited classified as held for sale as at 31 December ar	e as follows:		IEDO E 20
•	2007	2006	IFRS 5.38
	£000	£000	
	₹000	₹000	
Assets			
Intangibles (Note 13)	135	_	
Property, plant and equipment (Note 11)	4,637	_	
Debtors	6,990	_	
Cash and short-term deposits (Note 22)	1,294		
Assets classified as held for sale	13,056	-	
Liabilities			
Creditors	(6,764)	_	
Deferred tax liability	(54)	_	
Interest-bearing liabilities (Note 24)	(5,809)	_	
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale	(12,627)		
Elashiado anosay accordada min accord diacomba ac nota for care			
Net assets directly associated with disposal group	429		
Asset revaluation reserve	182	_	IFRS 5.38
Deferred tax on asset revaluation reserve	(54)	_	
Reserve of disposal group classified as held for sale	128	_	
Reserve of disposal group classified as field for sale			
The net cash flows incurred by Hose Limited are as follows:			IFRS 5.33(c)
	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Operating	(1,999)	3,293	
Net cash (outflow)/inflow	(1,999)	3,293	
(5251)/	ζ=,σσσ,		
Earnings per share:			IAS 33.68
Basic, from discontinued operation	€0.011	(€0.010)	
Diluted, from discontinued operation	€0.010	(€0.009)	

Interest-bearing liabilities comprise a fixed rate €5,809,000 bank loan having an effective interest rate of 7.5%. It is repayable in full on 1 January 2012.

### 8. Discontinued operation (continued)

The following disclosures are those required by IFRS 7 as they relate to the discontinued operation.

At 31 December 2007, trade receivables at a nominal value of €94,000 (2006: €Nil) were impaired and fully provided for. Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as follows:

IFRS 7.37

	Individually impaired	Collectively impaired	Total	IFRS 7.16
At 1 January 2006 and 31 December 2006	· –	· –	_	
Charge for the year	21	32	53	
Utilised	(2)	(3)	(5)	
Unused amounts reversed	(3)	(1)	(4)	
	16	28	44	

At 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

IFRS 7.37

			Past due	but not impa	ired	
Total	Neither past due nor impaired	<30 days	30-60 days	60-90 days	90-120 days	>120 days
€000 6,990	€000 3,011	€000 1,275	€000 1,290	€000 675	€000 478	€000 261

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the discontinued operation's financial liabilities at 31 December 2007 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Year ended 31 December 2007

Less than 3 to 12 1 to 5

	On demand	3 months	months	years	Total
Interest bearing loans and borrowings Trade and other payables	_ 2,237	- 4,336	_ 245	6,000	6,000 6,818
	2,237	4,336	245	6,000	12,818

Hose Limited was not classified as held for sale in 2006 and therefore there are no comparative balances in 2006.

### **Commentary**

2007 2006

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations specifies certain disclosures required in respect of discontinued operations. However, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures does not exclude non-current assets held for sale or discontinued operations from its scope and therefore the disclosure requirements apply. Good Group (International) Limited has presented these disclosures with the other disclosures for discontinued operations. However, they could be shown elsewhere in the financial statements.

## 9. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
	0.050	7.004	
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent from continuing operations  Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent from a discontinued operation	8,958 220	7,391 (188)	
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent for basic earnings	9,178	7,203	 IAS 33.70(a)
Interest on convertible preference shares	247	238	1A3 33.1 0(a)
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent adjusted for the effect of dilution	9,425	7,441	— IAS 33.70(a)
	2007	2006	
	Thousands	Thousands	IAS 33.70(b)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares) for basic earnings per share	20,797	19,064	
Fifted of Albertan			
Effect of dilution:	112	177	
Share options Convertible preference shares	833	833	
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (excluding treasury shares) adjusted for the effect			_
of dilution	21,742	20,074	_
There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the recompletion of these financial statements.	porting date and	I the date of	IAS 33.70(d)
To calculate earnings per share amounts for the discontinued operation, the weighted average number of or diluted amounts is as per the table above. The following table provides the profit figure used as the numera	-	r both basic and	
	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Net profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent from a discontinued			
operation for basic and diluted earnings per share calculations	220	(188)	IAS 33.68
10. Dividends paid and proposed			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Declared and paid during the year:			IAS 1.95
Equity dividends on ordinary shares:	4.000	740	
Final dividend for 2006: 5.66 cents (2005: 3.93 cents)	1,082 890	749 851	
Interim dividend for 2007: 4.66 cents (2006: 4.42 cents)	1,972	1,600	<u> </u>
	1,012	1,000	_
Proposed for approval at AGM (not recognised as a liability as at 31 December):			IAS 1.125(a)
Equity dividends on ordinary shares:			
Final dividend for 2007: 5.01 cents per share (2006: 5.66 cents per share)	1,087	1,082	_

## 11. Property, plant and equipment

	Freehold land and buildings €000	Plant and equipment €000	Total €000	IAS 1.75(a) IAS 16.73(d),(e
Cost or valuation:				(-/)(-/
At 1 January 2006	11,887	24,602	36,489	
Additions	1,587	6,235	7,822	
Acquisitions of a subsidiary (restated) (Note 3)	1,280	_	1,280	
Disposals	(3,381)	(49)	(3,430)	
Exchange adjustment	10	26	36	
At 31 December 2006 (restated)	11,383	30,814	42,197	_
Additions	1,612	6,043	7,655	
Acquisitions of a subsidiary (Note 3)	2,897	4,145	7,042	
Disposals	_	(4,908)	(4,908)	
Discontinued operations (Note 8)	(4,144)	(3,980)	(8,124)	
Revaluations (Note 23)	846	_	846	
Transfer*	(102)	_	(102)	
Exchange adjustment	30	79	109	
At 31 December 2007	12,522	32,193	44,715	_ _
Depreciation and impairment:				
At 1 January 2006	4,160	11,944	16,104	
Depreciation charge for the year	354	2,728	3,082	
Impairment (Note 6)	_	301	301	
Disposals	(3,069)	(49)	(3,118)	
Exchange adjustment	5	12	17	
At 31 December 2006	1,450	14,936	16,386	<u> </u>
Depreciation charge for the year	500	3,297	3,797	
Disposals	_	(3,450)	(3,450)	
Discontinued operations (Note 8)	(1,283)	(2,094)	(3,377)	
Transfer*	(102)	· -	(102)	
Exchange adjustment	20	30	50	
At 31 December 2007	585	12,719	13,304	<del>-</del>
Net book value:				
At 31 December 2007	11,937	19,474	31,411	
At 31 December 2006 (restated)	9,933	15,878	25,811	<del>_</del>
At 1 January 2006	7,727	12,658	20,385	<u> </u>

IAS 36.130

## Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Immediately before the classification as a discontinued operation of Hose Limited, a recoverable amount was estimated for certain items of property, plant and equipment and no impairment loss was identified. Following the classification, an impairment loss of €110,000 in total was recognised to reduce the carrying amount of certain of those assets to the fair value less costs to sell. This was recognised in the income statement in the line item 'Profit for the year from a discontinued operation'. An independent valuation was obtained to determine fair value which was based on recent transactions for similar assets within the same industry.

<sup>\*</sup> This transfer relates to the accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date that was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the revalued asset.

### 11. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

In 2006, the €301,000 impairment loss represented the write down of certain property, plant and equipment in the fire prevention segment to the recoverable amount. This has been recognised in the income statement in the line item of 'Cost of sales'. The recoverable amount was based on value in use and was determined at the cash generating unit level. The cash-generating unit consisted of the Euroland based assets of Sprinklers Limited and Showers Limited, a subsidiary and a jointly controlled entity of the Group respectively. In determining value in use for the cash-generating unit, the cash flows were discounted at a rate of 12.4% on a pre-tax basis.

IAS 36.126(a)

**Useful Lives** 

The useful lives of the assets is estimated as follows:

Buildings

20 years

20 years

Plant and equipment

20 years

5 to 15 years

1AS 16.77(a)-(e)

Revaluation of land and buildings

The Group engaged Chartered Surveyors & Co. an accredited independent valuer to determine the fair value of its land and buildings

The Group engaged Chartered Surveyors & Co., an accredited independent valuer, to determine the fair value of its land and buildings. Fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. The date of the revaluation was 30 November 2007.

If the land and buildings were measured using the cost model, the carrying amounts would be as follows:

	2007	2006	IAS 16.73(c)
	€000	€000	
Cost	11,778	11,383	
Accumulated depreciation and impairment	(573)	(1,450)	
Net carrying amount	11,205	9,933	

The carrying value of plant and equipment held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts at 31 December 2007 was €1,178,000 (2006: €1,486,000). Additions during the year include €45,000 (2006: €54,000) of plant and equipment held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts. Leased assets and assets under hire purchase contracts are pledged as security for the related finance lease and hire purchase liabilities.

IAS 17.31(a)

IAS 7 43

Land and buildings with a carrying amount of €7,400,000 (2006: €5,000,000) are subject to a first charge to secure two of the Group's bank loans (Note 24).

IAS 16.74(a)

Included in plant and equipment at 31 December 2007 was an amount of €1,500,000 (2006: Nil) relating to expenditure for a plant in the course of construction.

IAS 16.74(b)

### 12. Investment properties

	2007	2006	IAS 40.76
	€000	€000	
Opening balance at 1 January	7,983	7,091	
Additions (subsequent expenditure)	1,216	1,192	
Net loss from a fair value adjustment	(306)	(300)	
Closing balance at 31 December	8,893	7,983	•

Investment properties are stated at fair value, which has been determined based on valuations performed by Chartered Surveyors & Co. an accredited independent valuer, as at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 for the current and previous years respectively. Chartered Surveyors & Co. is an industry specialist in valuing these types of investment properties. The fair value represents the amount at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm's length transaction at the date of valuation, in accordance with International Valuation Standards Committee standards.

IAS 40.75(d) IAS 40.75(e)

## 13. Intangible assets

	Development	Patents and licences	Goodwill	Total	IAS 38.118(c)
	costs €000	ilcelices €000	€000	10tai €000	IAC 20 440(-)
Coat	€000	€000	₹000	₹000	IAS 38.118(e)
Cost:	1 505	635	119	2 220	IFRS 3.75
At 1 January 2006	1,585	033	119	2,339	
Additions - internal development	390	_	101	390	
Acquisition of a subsidiary (restated) (Note 3)			131	131	_
At 31 December 2006 (restated)	1,975	635	250	2,860	
Additions – internal development	587	-	_	587	
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 3)	_	1,200	2,017	3,217	
Acquisition of minority interest (Note 3)	_	_	190	190	
Discontinued operations	_	(138)	_	(138)	
At 31 December 2007	2,562	1,697	2,457	6,716	_ =
Amortisation and impairment:					
At 1 January 2006	165	60	_	225	
Amortisation	124	50	_	174	
At 31 December 2006	289	110		399	_
Amortisation	95	30	_	125	
Discontinued operations	_	(3)	_	(3)	
At 31 December 2007	384	137	_	521	- -
Net book value:					
At 31 December 2007	2,178	1,560	2,457	6,195	
At 31 December 2006 (restated)	1,686	525	250	2,461	_
At 1 January 2006	1,420	575	119	2,114	_
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				•	_

### Acquisition during the year

Patents and licences include intangible assets acquired through business combinations. These patents have been granted for a minimum of 10 years by the relevant government agency, while licences have been acquired with the option to renew at the end of the period at little or no cost to the Group. Previous licences acquired have been renewed and have allowed the Group to determine that these assets have an indefinite useful life. As at 31 December 2007, these assets were tested for impairment (Note 15).

### 14. Investment in an associate

The Group has a 25% interest in Power Works Limited, which is involved in the manufacture of fire prevention equipment for power stations in Euroland.

Power Works Limited is a private entity that is not listed on any public exchange. The following table illustrates summarised financial information of the Group's investment in Power Works Limited:

	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Share of the associate's balance sheet:			IAS 28.37(b)
Current assets	1,631	1,581	
Non-current assets	3,416	3,207	
Current liabilities	(1,122)	(976)	
Non-current liabilities	(3,161)	(3,131)	
Net assets	764	681	<del>-</del> -
Share of the associate's revenue and profit:			
Revenue	8,323	8,160	
Profits	83	81	
Carrying amount of the investment	764	681	

### 15. Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and licences with indefinite lives have been allocated to two individual cash-generating units, which are also reportable segments, for impairment testing as follows:

- Electronics cash-generating unit; and
- Fire prevention equipment cash-generating unit.

### Carrying amount of goodwill and licences allocated to each of the cash-generating units:

Flactronics unit

	LIECTIONIC	S UIIIL	equipiliei	equipinent unit		iviai	
	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	_
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	
Carrying amount of goodwill	440	250	2,017	_	2,457	250	IAS 36.134(a)
Carrying amount of licences with indefinite useful lives	360	_	1.050	240	1.410	240	IAS 36.134(b)
Electronics cash-generating unit			,		, -		IAS 36.134(c)
The recoverable amount of the electronic	s unit has been dete	ermined based o	n a value in use	calculation using	cash flow projecti	ons from	IAS 36.134(d)(iii)

Fire prevention

equipment unit

The recoverable amount of the electronics unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 12.3% (2006: 12.1%) and cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a 5.1% growth rate (2006: 5.0%) that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the electronics industry.

Fire prevention equipment cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the fire prevention equipment unit is also determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 12.4% (2006: 12.8%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the fire prevention equipment unit beyond the five-year period is 5.8% (2006: 3.8%). This growth rate exceeds the average growth rate for the industry in which the fire prevention equipment unit operates by two percentage points. Management of the fire prevention equipment unit believes this growth rate is justified based on the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited that has resulted in the control of an industry patent, preventing other entities from manufacturing a specialised product for a period of 10 years with the option for renewal after the 10 years have expired.

IAS 36.134(c) IAS 36.134(d)(iii) IAS 36.134(d)(iv) IAS 36.134(d)(v)

IAS 36.134(d)(v)

Total

#### 15. Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives (continued)

#### Key assumptions used in value in use calculations

The calculation of value in use for both electronics and fire prevention equipment units are most sensitive to the following assumptions:

- Gross margin;
- Discount rates;
- Raw materials price inflation;
- Market share during the budget period; and
- Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period.

Gross margins – Gross margins are based on average values achieved in the three years preceding the start of the budget period. These are increased over the budget period for anticipated efficiency improvements. A factor of 1.5% per annum was applied for the electronics unit and 2% per annum for the fire prevention equipment unit.

IAS 36.134(d)(i) IAS 36.134(d)(ii)

Discount rates – Discount rates reflect management's estimate of the risks specific to each unit. This is the benchmark used by management to assess operating performance and to evaluate future investment proposals. In determining appropriate discount rates for each unit, regard has been given to the yield on a ten-year government bond at the beginning of the budgeted year.

IAS 36.134(d)(i) IAS 36.134(d)(ii)

Raw materials price inflation – Estimates are obtained from published indices for the countries from which materials are sourced, as well as data relating to specific commodities. Forecast figures are used if data is publicly available (principally for Euroland and the United States), otherwise past actual raw material price movements have been used as an indicator of future price movements.

IAS 36.134(d)(i)
IAS 36.134(d)(ii)

Market share assumptions – These assumptions are important because, as well as using industry data for growth rates (as noted below) management assess how the unit's position, relative to its competitors, might change over the budget period. Management expects the Group's share of the electronics market to be stable over the budget period, whereas for the reasons explained above, the Board expects the Group's position, relative to its competitors, to strengthen following the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited.

IAS 36.134(d)(i)
IAS 36.134(d)(ii)

Growth rate estimates – Rates are based on published industry research. For the reasons explained above, the long-term rate used to extrapolate the budget for the fire prevention equipment unit includes an additional element for the acquisition of a significant industry patent.

IAS 36.134(d)(i) IAS 36.134(d)(ii)

## Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

IAS 36.134(t)

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the fire prevention equipment unit, management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

IAS 36.134(f)(i)

For the electronics unit, there are reasonably possible changes in key assumptions which could cause the carrying value of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount. The actual recoverable amount for the fire prevention equipment unit exceeds its carrying amount by €1,800,000 (2006: €1,550,000). The implications of the key assumptions on the recoverable amount are discussed below.

IAS 36.134(f)(ii)
IAS 36.134(f)(iii)

- Raw materials price inflation Management has considered the possibility of greater than budgeted increases in raw material price
  inflation. This may occur if anticipated regulatory changes result in an increasing demand which cannot be met by suppliers. Budgeted
  price inflation lies within a range of 1.9% to 2.6%, depending on the country from which materials are purchased. Should the group be
  unable to pass on or absorb through efficiency improvements additional cost increases of an average of 4.5%, the electronic unit's value
  in use would be reduced to its carrying value.
- IAS 36.134(f)(ii) IAS 36.134(f)(iii)

Growth rate assumptions – Management recognises that the speed of technological change and the possibility of new entrants can have
a significant impact on growth rate assumptions. The effect of new entrants is not expected to impact adversely on forecasts included
in the budget, but could yield a reasonably possible alternative to the estimated long-term growth rate of 5.2%. A reduction of 4.4
percentage points in this growth rate would give a value in use equal to the carrying amount of the electronics unit.

#### 16. Available-for-sale investments

Ordinary shares - unquoted
Ordinary shares - quoted

€000	€000	
1,804	1,798	IAS 39 AG74-79 IFRS 7.27(b)
337	_	IAS 39 AG71-73
2,141	1,798	

2006

2007

#### 16. Available-for-sale investments (continued)

Unquoted shares IFRS 7.27(a), (c)

The fair value of the unquoted ordinary shares has been estimated using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices. The valuation requires management to make estimates about the expected future cash flows of the shares which are discounted at current rates. Management has determined that the potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to the valuation model would reduce the fair value by €147,000 (2006: €152,000) using less favourable assumptions and increase the fair value by €117,000 (2006: €121,000) using more favourable assumptions.

Quoted shares

IFRS 7.27(b)

2007

2000

The fair value of the quoted ordinary shares is determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market.

#### 17. Other financial assets (non-current)

	£000	€000
Loan notes	3,674	1,685
Loan to associate	200	_
Director's loan	13	8
	3,887	1,693

For terms and conditions relating to related party loans, refer to Note 30.

#### 18. Share-based payment plans

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

	2007 €000	2006 €000	
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions	307	298	
Expense arising from cash-settled share-based payment transactions	105	194	
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions	412	492	IFRS 2.51(a)

The share-based payment plans are described below. There have been no cancellations or modifications to any of the plans during 2007 or 2006.

### Senior Executive Plan

Under the Senior Executive Plan (SEP), share options are granted to senior executives with more than 12 months' service. The exercise price of the options is equal to the market price of the shares on the date of grant. The options vest if and when the Group's earnings per share amount increases by 12%, within three years from the date of grant. If this increase is not met the options lapse.

The fair value of the options is estimated at the grant date using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted.

The contractual life of each option granted is five years. There are no cash settlement alternatives.

### General Employee Share-option Plan

IFRS 2.45(a)

IFRS 2.46

IFRS 2.45(a)

All other employees are entitled to a grant of options, under the General Employee Share-option Plan (GESP), once they have been in service for two years. The vesting of the options is dependent on the total shareholder return (TSR) of the Group as compared to a group of principal competitors. Employees must remain in service for a period of three years from the date of grant. The fair value of share options granted is estimated at the date of the grant using a Monte Carlo simulation model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The model simulates the TSR and compares it against the group of principal competitors. It takes into account historic dividends, share price fluctuation covariances of Good Group and each entity of the group of competitors to predict the distribution of relative share performance.

IFRS 2.47(a)(iii)

### 18. Share-based payment plans (continued)

The exercise price of the options is equal to the market price of the shares less 17% on the date of grant. The contractual life of the options is five years and there are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group has not developed a past practice of cash settlement.

IFRS 2.46

#### Share Appreciation Rights

Employees in the business development group are granted share appreciation rights (SARs), which can only be settled in cash. These will vest when a specified target number of new sales contracts are closed. The contractual life of the SARs is six years. The fair value of the SARs is measured at the grant date using a binomial option pricing model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The services received and a liability to pay for those services are recognised over the expected vesting period. Until the liability is settled it is remeasured at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

IFRS 2.45(a) IFRS 2.46

The carrying amount of the liability relating to the SARs at 31 December 2007 is €299,000 (2006: €194,000). No SARs had vested at 31 December 2007 (2006: Nil).

IFRS 2.51(b)

Movements in the year

IFRS 2.45(b)

The following table illustrates the number (No.) and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year:

	2007	2007	2006	2006	
	No.	WAEP	No.	WAEP	
Outstanding at 1 January	575,000 <sup>1</sup>	€2.85	525,000 <sup>1</sup>	€2.75	
Granted during the year	250,000	€3.85	155,000	€3.13	
Forfeited during the year	_	_	(25,000)	€2.33	
Exercised during the year	$(75,000)^3$	€2.33	$(65,000)^2$	€3.08	IFRS 2.45(c)
Expired during the year	(25,000)	€3.46	(15,000)	€2.13	
Outstanding at 31 December	725,000 <sup>1</sup>	€3.23	575,000 <sup>1</sup>	€2.85	
Exercisable at 31 December	110,000	_	100,000		IFRS 2.45(d)

<sup>1</sup> Included within this balance are options over 277,000 shares that have not been recognised in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment as the options were granted on or before 7 November 2002. These options have not been subsequently modified and therefore do not need to be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2.

IFRS 2.56

IFRS 2.45(c)

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2007 is 2.94 years (2006: 2.60 years). The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was €1.32 (2006: €1.18).

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was €2.33 - €3.85 (2006: €2.13 - €3.13).

IFRS 2.47(a) IFRS 2.45(d)

The following table lists the inputs to the models used for the three plans for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006:

IFRS 2.47(a)(i)

	2007	2007	2007
	SEP	GESP	SAR
Dividend yield (%)	3.13	3.13	3.05
Expected volatility (%)	15.00	16.00	18.00
Risk -free interest rate (%)	5.10	5.10	5.10
Expected life of option (years)	3.00	4.25	6.00
Weighed average share price (€)	3.10	3.10	3.12
Model used	Binomial	Monte Carlo	Binomial
	2006	2006	2006
	SEP	GESP	SAR
Dividend yield (%)	3.01	3.01	3.02
Expected volatility (%)	16.30	17.50	18.10
Risk -free interest rate (%)	5.00	5.00	5.00
Expected life of option (years)	3.00	4.25	6.00
Weighed average share price (€)	2.86	2.86	2.88
Model used	Binomial	Monte Carlo	Binomial

The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The SEP and GESP are equity-settled plans and the fair value is measured at the grant date. The SARs are cash-settled and the fair value is remeasured at the reporting date.

<sup>2</sup> The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options was €4.09.

<sup>3</sup> The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options was €3.13.

## 19. Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans

The Group has two defined benefit pension plans, one final salary plan and one average salary plan, covering substantially all of its employees, both of which require contributions to be made to separately administered funds.

IAS 19.120 IAS 19.120A(b)

The Group has also agreed to provide certain additional post-employment healthcare benefits to senior employees in the United States. These benefits are unfunded.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the income statement and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

amounts recognised in the parameter for the respective bight	S.				
			Post-		
			employment		
Net benefit expense (recognised in cost of sales)	Euroland plan	US plan	medical	Total	IAS 19.120A(g)
	2007	2007	2007	2007	
	€000	€000	€000	€000	
Current service cost	(715)	(430)	(128)	(1,273)	
Interest cost on benefit obligation	(201)	(55)	(25)	(281)	
Expected return on plan assets	127	56	(25)	183	
Net actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in the year	(100)	(22)	_	(122)	
Past service cost	(55)	(22)	_	(55)	
		(454)	(450)		_
Net benefit expense	(944)	(451)	(153)	(1,548)	_
Actual return on plan assets	445	293	-	-	IAS 19.120A(m)
			Post-		
			employment		
	Euroland plan	US plan	medical	Total	
	2006	2006	2006	2006	
	€000	€000	€000	€000	
Current service cost	(744)	(322)	(105)	(1,171)	
Interest cost on benefit obligation	(218)	(65)	(8)	(291)	
Expected return on plan assets	126	47	_	173	
Net actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in the year	(44)	(34)	_	(78)	
Past service cost	(107)	_	_	(107)	
	(987)	(374)	(113)	(1,474)	
Net benefit expense	(901)	(314)	(113)	(1,474)	
Actual return on plan assets	(338)	(166)	_	_	IAS 19.120A(m)
			Post-		
			employment		IAS 19.120A(f)
Benefit asset/(liability)	Euroland plan	US plan	medical	Total	
	2007	2007	2007	2007	
	€000	€000	€000	€000	
Defined benefit obligation	(4,940)	(1,093)	(339)	(6,372)	
Fair value of plan assets	2,617	705	_	3,322	
Tall Value of plan access	(2,323)	(388)	(339)	(3,050)	
Unrecognised actuarial (gains)/losses	1,481	47	(333)	1,528	
- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	428	-	_	428	
Unrecognised past service costs					
Benefit liability	(414)	(341)	(339)	(1,094)	_
			Post-		
	_ ,	,	employment		
	Euroland plan	US plan	medical	Total	
	2006	2006	2006	2006	
	€000	€000	€000	€000	
Defined benefit obligation	(4,108)	(1,115)	(197)	(5,420)	
Fair value of plan assets	1,763	680	_	2,443	
•	(2,345)	(435)	(197)	(2,977)	
Unrecognised net actuarial (gains)/losses	1,414	425	(-3. <i>)</i>	1,839	
Unrecognised past service cost	483		_	483	
Benefit liability	(448)	(10)	(197)	(655)	_
bonone nabiney	(110)	(10)	(20.7	(000)	

## 19. Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

IAS 19.120A(c)

Post-

	Euroland plan €000	US plan €000	employment medical €000	
Defined benefit obligation at 1 January 2006	3,973	1,275	88	
Interest cost	218	65	8	
Current service cost	744	322	105	
Benefits paid	(983)	(158)	_	
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation	156	(379)	_	
Exchange differences on foreign plans		(10)	(4)	
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2006	4,108	1,115	197	
Interest cost	201	55	25	
Current service cost	715	430	128	
Benefits paid	(569)	(299)	_	
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation	485	(119)	_	
Exchange differences on US plans		(89)	(11)	
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2007	4,940	1,093	339	_
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:				
•	Euroland plan	US plan		IAS 19.120A(e)
	€000	€000		
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January 2006	2,134	676		
Expected return	126	47		
Contributions by employer	950	324		
Benefits paid	(983)	(158)		
Actuarial gains/(losses)	(464)	(213)		
Exchange differences on US plans		4	_	

The Group expects to contribute €1,500,000 to its defined benefit pension plans in 2008.

Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 2006

Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 2007

Expected return

Benefits paid

Contributions by employer

Actuarial gains/(losses)

Exchange difference on US plans

IAS 19.120A(q)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows: IAS 19.120A(j)

1,763

127

978

(569)

318

2,617

680

56 25

(299)

237

705

6

	Pension plans				
	Euroland	plan	US	Splan	
	2007	2006	2007	2006	
	%	%	%	%	
Euroland equities	44	49	13	10	
American equities	29	29	9	9	
Euroland bonds	10	5	33	32	
American bonds	10	8	19	15	
Property	7	9	26	34	

### 19. Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Effect on the aggregate current service cost and interest cost

Effect on the defined benefit obligation

The plan assets include property occupied by Good Group (International) Limited with a fair value of €150,000 (2006: €140,000) IAS 19.120A(k) The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market expectations prevailing on that date, applicable to the IAS 19.120A(I) period over which the obligation is to be settled. There has been a significant change in the expected rate of return on assets due to the improved stock market scenario. IAS 19.120A(n) The principal assumptions used in determining pension and post-employment medical benefit obligations for the Group's plans are shown below: 2007 2006 % % Discount rate: 5.5 Euroland plan 4.9 5.9 US plan 5.7 Expected rate of return on assets: Euroland plan 7.2 5.9 US plan 8.3 6.8 Future salary increases: Euroland plan 3.5 4.0 US plan 3.8 4.1 Future pension increases: 2.1 Euroland plan 2.1 US plan 2.2 2.3 7.2 Healthcare cost increase rate 7.4 Post retirement mortality for pensioners at 65: Euroland plan Male 20.0 20.0 **Female** 23.0 23.0 US plan 19.0 19.0 Male 22.0 22.0 **Female** A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in healthcare costs would have the following effects: Increase Decrease IAS 19.120A(o) €000 €000 2007 Effect on the aggregate current service cost and interest cost 6 (2)Effect on the defined benefit obligation 12 (8)2006

4

(2)

(5)

## 19. Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

IAS 19.120A(p)

			Euroland plan				
	2007	2006	2005	2004	2003		
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000		
Defined benefit obligation	(4,940)	(4,108)	(3,973)	(1,758)	(1,585)		
Plan assets	2,617	1,763	2,134	2,536	2,284		
(Deficit)/surplus	(2,323)	(2,345)	(1,839)	778	699		
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities	(572)	(257)	320	(125)	245		
Experience adjustments on plan assets	318	(464)	(920)	(548)	(486)		
			US plan				
	2007	2006	2005	2004	2003		
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000		
Defined benefit obligation	(1,093)	(1,115)	(1,275)	(890)	(1,093)		
Plan assets	705	680	676	1,085	815		
(Deficit)/surplus	(388)	(435)	(599)	195	(278)		
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities	145	402	256	(150)	345		
Experience adjustments on plan assets	243	(217)	(175)	220	372		
	Post-employment medical benefits						
	2007	2006	2005	2004	2003		
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000		
Defined benefit obligation	(339)	(197)	(88)	(80)	(78)		
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities	(48)	(37)	(22)	15	20		
20. Inventories							
				2007	2006	IAS 2.36(b)	
				€000	€000	IAS 1.75(c)	
Raw materials (at cost)				6,046	7,793		
Work in progress (at cost)				13,899	11,224		
Finished goods (at net realisable value)				4,930	6,472	_	
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net	realisable value			24,875	25,489	_	
The amount of write-down of inventories recognise	ed as an expense is	3 €286,000 (2006:	: €242,000) which	is recognised in o	ost of sales.	IAS 2.36(e)	
21. Trade and other receivables (curre	nt)						
				2007	2006	IAS 1.75(b)	
				€000	€000	IFRS 7.6	
Trade receivables				26,501	23,158		
Receivables from associate				551	582		
Receivables from other related parties				620	550		
				27,672	24,290		

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer to Note 30.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-90 days' terms.

IFRS 7.34(a)

### 21. Trade and other receivables (current)

As at 31 December 2007, trade receivables at nominal value of €108,000 (2006: €97,000) were impaired and fully provided for. Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as follows:

IFRS 7.37

	Individually impaired €000	Collectively impaired €000	Total €000	IFRS 7.16
At 1 January 2006	29	66	95	
Charge for the year	4	8	12	
Utilised	(4)	(6)	(10)	
At 31 December 2006	29	68	97	<u> </u>
Charge for the year	10	16	26	
Utilised	(3)	(5)	(8)	
Unused amounts reversed	(2)	(6)	(8)	
Discount rate adjustment	-	1	1	
At 31 December 2007	34	74	108	_ _

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

IFRS 7.37

		_	Past due but not impaired						
2007 2006	Total €000 26,501 23,158	Neither past due nor impaired €000 17,596 16,455	< 30 days €000 4,791 3,440	30 - 60 days €000 2,592 1,840	60 - 90 day €000 1,070 945	90 - 120 day €000 360 370	>120 days €000 92 108		
22. Cash a	nd short-term	deposits							
						2007	2006		
						€000	€000		
Cash at banks Short-term de						10,664 5.796	11,125 3,791		
Short-term de	μυσιτο					16,460	14,916		

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. The fair value of cash and short-term deposits is €16,460,000 (2006: €14,916,000).

IFRS 7.34(a)

At 31 December 2007, the Group had available €5,740,000 (2006: €1,230,000) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met.

IAS 7.50(a)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at 31 December:

IAS 7.45

2006

2007

Cash at banks and on hand       10,664       11,125         Short-term deposits       5,796       3,791         Cash at banks and short-term deposits attributable to a discontinued operation (Note 8)       1,294       -         Bank overdrafts (Note 24)       (966)       (2,650)         16,788       12,266		€000	€000
Cash at banks and short-term deposits attributable to a discontinued operation (Note 8) 1,294 - 17,754 14,916 Bank overdrafts (Note 24) (966) (2,650)	Cash at banks and on hand	10,664	11,125
Bank overdrafts (Note 24) 17,754 14,916 (966) (2,650)	Short-term deposits	5,796	3,791
Bank overdrafts (Note 24) (966) (2,650)	Cash at banks and short-term deposits attributable to a discontinued operation (Note 8)	1,294	_
		17,754	14,916
16.788 12.266	Bank overdrafts (Note 24)	(966)	(2,650)
		16,788	12,266

# 23. Issued capital and reserves

Authorised

Ordinary share of €1 each 7% convertible preference shares of €1 each (Note 24)	2007 Thousands 22,588 2,500 <b>25,088</b>	2006 Thousands 20,088 2,500 22,588	IAS 1.75(e) IAS 1.76(a)(i) IAS 1.76(a)(iii)
During the year, the authorised share capital was increased by €2,500,000 by the creation of 2,500,00	0 ordinary shares	of €1 each.	
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid	Thousands	€000	IAS 1.76(a)(ii) IAS 1.76(a)(iv)
At 1 January 2006	19,388	19,388	
Issued on 1 November 2006 for cash on exercise of share options	65	65	
At 1 January 2007	19,453	19,453	_
Issued on 1 May 2007 in exchange for issued share capital of Extinguishers Limited (Note 3)	2,500	2,500	
Issued on 1 November 2007 for cash on exercise of share options	75	75	_
At 31 December 2007	22,028	22,028	_
Treasury shares	Thousands	€000	IAS 1.76(a)(vi)
At 1 January 2006, 2007 and 31 December 2007	335	774	_
Other capital reserves		€000	
At 1 January 2006, 2007 and 31 December 2007		228	_

This reserve represents the equity component of the convertible preference shares, net of deferred income tax.

### 23. Issued capital and reserves (continued)

#### Share option schemes

The Company has two share option schemes under which options to subscribe for the Company's shares have been granted to certain executives and senior employees (Note 18).

	Employee	Asset	Net	Foreign currency		IAS 1.97(c)
	equity benefits	revaluation	unrealised	translation		
Other reserves	reserve	reserve	gains reserve	reserve	Total	
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	IAS 1.96(b)
At 1 January 2006	_	_	83	(327)	(244)	
Currency translation differences	_	_	_	(117)	(117)	IAS 21.52(b)
Net movement on cash flow hedges	_	_	33	_	33	IFRS 7.23(c)
Tax effect on net movement on cash flow hedges	_	_	(9)	_	(9)	IAS 12.81(a)
Share-based payment	298	_	_	_	298	
Net unrealised gains on available-for-sale investments	_	_	3	_	3	IFRS 7.20(a)(ii)
Tax effect of net gains on available-for-sale						IAS 12.81(a)
investments			(1)		(1)	IAS 12.81(a)
At 31 December 2006	298	_	109	(444)	(37)	
Revaluation of land and buildings	_	846	_	_	846	IAS 16.77(f)
Tax effect of revaluation of land and buildings	_	(254)	_	_	(254)	IAS 12.81(a)
Depreciation transfer	_	(114)	_	_	(114)	IAS 16.77(f)
Tax effect of depreciation transfer	_	34	_	_	34	IAS 12.81(a)
Discontinued operations (Note 8)	_	(182)	_	_	(182)	IFRS 5.38
Tax effect of discontinued operations	_	54	_	_	54	
Net unrealised gains on available-for-sale investments	_	_	8	_	8	IFRS 7.20(a)(ii)
Realised gains on available-for-sale investments	_					
reclassified to the income statement		_	(5)	_	(5)	IFRS 7.20(a)(ii)
Realised losses on available-for-sale investments	_					
reclassified to the income statement		_	3	_	3	IFRS 7.20(a)(ii)
Share-based payment	307	_	_	_	307	
Tax effect of net gains on available-for-sale	_	_	(2)	_	(2)	
investments						
Net movement on cash flow hedges	_	_	83	_	83	IFRS 7.23(c)
Tax effect of net movement on cash flow hedges	_	_	(25)	_	(25)	IAS 12.81(a)
Currency translation differences	_	_	_	(222)	(222)	IAS 21.52(b)
Net gains on hedge of net investment	_	_	_	278	278	IAS 1.97(c)
Tax effect of net gains on hedge of net investment				(92)	(92)	IAS 12.81(a)
At 31 December 2007	605	384	171	(480)	680	ì

### Nature and purpose of other reserves

IAS 1.76(b)

#### Employee equity benefits reserve

The employee equity benefits reserve is used to record the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to employees, including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 18 for further details of these plans.

#### Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increases in the fair value of land and buildings and decreases to the extent that such decrease relates to an increase on the same asset previously recognised in equity. The reserve can only be used to pay dividends in limited circumstances.

## Net unrealised gains reserve

This reserve records fair value changes on available-for-sale investments. Also recorded here is the portion of the gain or loss on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that is determined to be an effective hedge.

The net loss on cash flow hedges during the year, recognised in equity was €318,000 (2006: €379,000). During the year net losses of €175,000 IFRS 7.23(c), (d) (2006: €180,000) were reclassified to sales and €226,000 (2006: €232,000) were transferred to inventory.

## Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. It is also used to record the effect of hedging net investments in foreign operations.

### 24. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

	Effective interest rate %	Maturity	2007 €000	2006 €000
Current	interest rate 70	matunty	2000	2000
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts (Note 29)	7.8	2008	83	51
Bank overdrafts Other loans:	EURIBOR +1.0	On demand	966	2,650
€1,500,000 bank loan (2006: €1,400,000)	EURIBOR +0.5	1 November 2008	1,411	_
€2,200,000 bank loan	EURIBOR +0.5	31 March 2007	_	74
		_	2,460	2,775
Non-current Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts (Note 29) 8% debentures	7.8 8.2	2009-2010 2009-2017	905 3,374	943 3,154
8.25% secured loan of US\$3,600,000	LIBOR +0.2	31 May 2013	2,246	-
Secured bank loan at LIBOR + 2.0%  Other loans:	LIBOR +2.0	31 July 2013	3,479	3,489
Other loans.		1 November		
€1,500,000 bank loan (2006: €1,400,000)	EURIBOR +0.5	2008	_	1,357
€2,500,000 bank loan	EURIBOR +1.1	2010-2012	2,486	2,229
€2,200,000 bank loan	EURIBOR +0.5	31 March 2011	2,078	2,078
€5,809,000 bank loan	7.5	1 January 2012	-	5,809
Share of a joint venture loan	EURIBOR +0.5	30 June 2012	510	500
Convertible preference shares	11.65	2010-2013	15,078 2,778	19,559 2,644
			17,856	22,203

<sup>\*</sup> includes the effects of related interest rate swap as discussed in Note 31.

#### Bank overdrafts

The bank overdrafts are secured by a floating charge over certain of the Group's assets.

IFRS 7.7

### €1,500,000 bank loan

This loan is unsecured and is repayable in full on 1 November 2008.

#### 8% debentures

The 8% debentures are repayable in equal annual instalments of €350,000 commencing on 1 January 2009.

#### 8.25% secured loan

The loan is secured by a first charge over certain of the Group's land and buildings of €2,400,000 (2006: Nil).

## Secured bank loan

This loan has been drawn down under a six-year multi-option facility (MOF). The loan is repayable within 12 months of the balance sheet date, but has been classified as long-term because the Group expects to exercise its rights under the MOF to refinance this funding. Such immediate replacement funding is available through to 31 July 2013. The total amount repayable on maturity is €3,500,000. The facility is secured by a first charge over certain of the Group's land and buildings, with a book value of €5,000,000 (2006: €5,000,000).

## €2,500,000 bank loan

This loan is repayable in two equal instalments of €1,250,000 due on 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2012.

### €2,200,000 bank loan

This loan is unsecured and is repayable in full on 31 March 2011 (2006: €74,000 repayable on 31 March 2007 and the balance repayable on 31 March 2011).

## Share of a joint venture loan

This relates to the Group's 50% share of the joint venture's €1,020,000 bank loan (2006: €1,000,000) on the same terms as the €2,200,000 loan to the Group discussed above and is repayable in full on 30 June 2012.

#### 24. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Convertible preference shares

IAS 1.76(a)(v)

Mooto

At 31 December 2007 and 2006, there were 2,500,000 convertible preference shares on issue. Each share has a nominal value of €1 and is convertible at the option of the Company or the shareholder into ordinary shares on 1 January 2010 on the basis of one ordinary share for every three preference shares held. Any preference shares not converted will be redeemed on 31 December 2013 at a price of €1.20 per share. The preference shares carry a dividend of 7% per annum, payable half-yearly in arrears on 30 June and 31 December. The dividend rights are non-cumulative. The preference shares rank ahead of the ordinary shares in the event of a liquidation.

#### 25. Provisions

	Maintenance warranties €000	Restructuring €000	Decom- missioning €000	Operating lease €000	Social security contributions on share options €000	Waste electrical and electronic equipment €000	Total €000	
At 1 January 2007	118	_	_	_	4	53	175	IAS 37.84(a)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 3)	_	500	1,200	400	_	_	2,100	
Arising during the year	112	_	_	_	26	102	240	IAS 37.84(b)
Utilised	(60)	(39)	_	(20)	(19)	(8)	(146)	IAS 37.84(c)
Unused amounts reversed	(6)	(6)	_	-	-	_	(12)	IAS 37.84(d)
Discount rate adjustment	2	11	21	6	1	2	43	IAS 37.84(e)
At 31 December 2007	166	466	1,221	386	12	149	2,400	
Current 2007	114	100	_	205	3	28	450	IAS 1.60
Non-current 2007	52	366	1,221	181	9	121	1,950	
	166	466	1,221	386	12	149	2,400	_
Current 2006	60	_	_	_	_	38	98	
Non-current 2006	58			-	4	15	77	
	118	_		_	4	53	175	

Maintenance warranties IAS 37.85

A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold during the last two years, based on past experience of the level of repairs and returns. It is expected that most of these costs will be incurred in the next financial year and all will have been incurred within two years of the balance sheet date. Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on current sales levels and current information available about returns based on the two-year warranty period for all products sold.

### Restructuring

The restructuring provision was in existence prior to the business combination and relates principally to the elimination of certain product lines of Extinguishers Limited. The restructuring plan was drawn up and announced to the employees of Extinguishers Limited in 2006 when the provision was recognised in the acquiree's financial statements. The restructuring is expected to be completed by 2009.

#### **Decommissioning**

A provision has been recognised for decommissioning costs associated with a factory owned by Extinguishers Limited. The Group is committed to decommissioning the site as a result of the construction of the manufacturing facility for the production of fire retardant fabrics.

## **Operating lease**

On acquisition of Extinguishers Limited, a provision has been recognised for the fact that the lease premiums on the operating lease were significantly higher than the market rate at acquisition. The provision has been calculated based on the difference between the market rate and the rate paid.

## Commentary

The above table does not show movements in provisions for the comparative period as per IAS 37.84, this information is not required.

### 25. Provisions (continued)

#### Social security contributions on share options

The provision for social security contributions on share option gains, is calculated based on the number of options outstanding at the balance sheet date that are expected to be exercised, and using the market price of the shares at the balance sheet date as the best estimate of market price at the date of exercise. It is expected that the costs will be incurred during the exercise period of 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010.

## Waste electrical and electronic equipment

The provision for waste electrical and electronic equipment is calculated based on sales in the current year (new waste) and expected disposals of old waste (sales before August 2005).

### 26. Government grants

	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
At 1 January	1,551	1,450	
Received during the year	2,951	642	
Released to the income statement	(1,053)	(541)	IAS 20.39(b)
At 31 December	3,449	1,551	_
Non-current	3,300	1,400	_
Current	149	151	
	3,449	1,551	<del>-</del> =
27. Trade and other payables (current)			
	2007	2006	

#### n

Trade payables	17,464	19,496
Other payables	1,833	1,495
Interest payable	43	269
Joint venture	30	12
Other related parties	10	9
	19,380	21,281

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.
- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.
- Interest payable is normally settled quarterly throughout the financial year.
- For terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer to Note 30.

### 28. Other financial liabilities

	2007 €000	2006 €000
Financial guarantee contracts	87	49
Forward currency contracts (Note 32)	170	254
Interest rate swap (Note 32)	35	_
	292	303

### 29. Commitments and contingencies

### Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

IAS 17.35(d)

IFRS 7.39

€000

€000

The Group has entered into commercial leases on certain motor vehicles and items of machinery. These leases have an average life of between 3 and 5 years with no renewal option included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the Group by entering into these leases.

## 29. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:			IAS 17.35(a)
	2007	2006	
	€000	€000	
Within one year	255	250	
After one year but not more than five years	612	600	
More than five years	408	400	
	1,275	1,250	_

#### Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

IAS 17.56(c)

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio, consisting of the Group's surplus office and manufacturing buildings. These non-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between 5 and 20 years. All leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

	2007 €000	2006 €000	IAS 17.56(a)
Within one year	709	695	
After one year but not more than five years	2,815	2,760	
More than five years	5,901	5,864	
	9,425	9,319	<del>_</del>

#### Finance lease and hire purchase commitments

IAS 17.31(e)

The Group has finance leases and hire purchase contracts for various items of plant and machinery. These leases have terms of renewal but no purchase options and escalation clauses. Renewals are at the option of the specific entity that holds the lease. Future minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

	Minimum payments €000	2007 Present value of payments (Note 24) €000	Minimum payments €000	2006 Present value of payments (Note 24) €000	
Within one year After one year but not more than five years	85 944	83 905	56 1,014	51 943	
Total minimum lease payments Less amounts representing finance charges	1,029 (41)		1,070 (76)		IAS 17.31(b)
Present value of minimum lease payments	988	988	994	994	_ _

### **Capital commitments**

At 31 December 2007, the Group had commitments of €4,590,000 (2006: €4,500,000) principally relating to the completion of the operating facilities of Sprinklers Inc. and commitments of €310,000 (2006: €516,000) in relation to the Group's interest in the joint venture entity. These commitments are for the acquisition of new machinery.

IAS 16.74(c)

IAS 31.55

### Legal claim

An overseas customer has commenced an action against the Group in respect of equipment claimed to be defective. The estimated payout is €850,000 should the action be successful. A trial date has not yet been set and therefore it is not practicable to state the timing of the payment, if any.

IAS 37.86

The Group has been advised by its legal counsel that it is only possible, but not probable, that the action will succeed and accordingly no provision for any liability has been made in these financial statements.

## 29. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

**Guarantees**Good Group (International) Limited has provided the following guarantees at 31 December 2007:

IAS 31.54(a)

 it has guaranteed 25% of the bank overdraft of the associate to a maximum amount of €500,000 (2006: €Nil), which is incurred jointly with other investors of the associate; IAS 28.40 IAS 37.86

- it has guaranteed its interest in its share of the joint venture loan of €510,000 (Note 24) (2006: €500,000) over certain land and buildings;
- it has guaranteed to an unrelated party the performance of a contract for the joint venture entity. No liability is expected to arise; and
- it has guaranteed its share of €20,000 (2006: €15,000) of the associate's contingent liabilities which have been incurred jointly with other investors.

IAS 31.54(b)

IAS 28.40(a)
IAS 24.12

## 30. Related party disclosures

The financial statements include the financial statements of Good Group (International) Limited and the subsidiaries listed in the following table:

• • •				
Country of Incorporation	2007	2006	IAS 24.14	
Euroland	100.0	_		
Euroland	95.0	95.0		
United States	98.0	98.0		
United States	100.0	100.0		
Euroland	87.4	80.0		
Euroland	100.0	100.0		
	Euroland Euroland United States United States Euroland	Country of Incorporation 2007  Euroland 100.0 Euroland 95.0 United States 98.0 United States 100.0 Euroland 87.4	Incorporation         2007         2006           Euroland         100.0         —           Euroland         95.0         95.0           United States         98.0         98.0           United States         100.0         100.0           Euroland         87.4         80.0	

Good Group (International) Limited is the ultimate Euroland parent entity and the ultimate parent of the Group is S.J. Limited.

IAS 1.126(c)

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year (for information regarding outstanding balances at 31 December 2007 and 2006, refer to Notes 21 and 27):

IAS 24.17 IAS 24.22

		Sales to related parties €000	Purchases from related parties €000	Amounts owed by related parties €000	Amounts owed to related parties €000
Entity with significant influence over the Group: International Fires P.L.C.	2007 2006	7,115 5,975	- -	600 550	<u>-</u>
Associate: Power Works Limited	2007 2006	2,900 2,100	- -	551 582	<u>-</u>
Joint venture in which the parent is a venturer: Showers Limited	2007 2006	- -	590 430	<del>-</del>	30 12
Key management personnel of the Group: Other directors' interests	2007 2006	225 135	510 490	20 _	10 9
Loans from/to related party		Interest received		Amounts owed by related parties	
Associate: Power Works Limited	2007 2006	20 _		200 _	
Key management personnel of the Group: Director's loan (Note 17)	2007 2006	1 -		13 8	

#### 30. Related party disclosures (continued)

IAS 24.12

IAS 1.126(c)

The ultimate parent

S.J. Limited

There were no transactions between the Group and S.J. Limited during the financial year (2006: Nil).

Entity with significant influence over the Group

International Fires P.L.C.

International Fires P.L.C. owns 31.48% of the ordinary shares in Good Group (International) Limited (2006: 31.48%).

Associate

Power Works Limited

The Group has a 25% interest in Power Works Limited (2006: 25%).

Joint venture in which the parent is a venturer

Showers Limited

The Group has a 50% interest in Showers Limited (2006: 50%).

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (2006: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

IAS 24.21 IAS 24.17(b)

### Transactions with other related parties

Director's loan

The Group offers the possibility to senior management to receive a loan up to a maximum of €20,000 repayable within 5 years from the date of disbursement. Such loans are unsecured and the same interest rate as for long term company loans is applicable (currently EURIBOR + 0.8). As at 31 December 2007 the amount of €13,000 was outstanding to one director (2006: €8,000). This amount is included in financial assets.

IAS 24.17(b)

#### Other directors' interests

During both 2007 and 2006, purchases at normal market prices were made by group companies from Gnome Industries Limited, of which the wife of one of the directors is a director and controlling shareholder.

One director has a 25% (2006: 25%) equity interest in Home Fires Limited. The company has a contract for the supply of fire extinguishers. During 2007 and 2006, the Company supplied extinguishers to Home Fires Limited at normal market prices.

#### Loan to associate

During the year, Good Group (International) Limited has granted a loan to its associate Power Works Limited in the amount of €200,000 (2006: Nil). It is intended to finance an acquisition of new machines for the manufacturing of fire prevention equipment. The loan is unsecured and repayable in full on 1 June 2010. Interest is charged at EURIBOR + 0.8.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group	2007 €000	2006 €000	
Short-term employee benefits	435	424	IAS 24.16(a)
Post-employment pension and medical benefits	110	80	IAS 24.16(b)
Termination benefits <sup>1</sup>	40	_	IAS 24.16(d)
Share-based payments	18	12	IAS 24.16(c)
Total compensation paid to key management personnel	603	516	_

<sup>1</sup> The non-executive directors do not receive pension entitlements from the Group. During 2007, an additional pension payment of €40,000 was made to a director who retired from an executive director position in 2006.

30. Related party disclosures (continued)

Directors' interests in an employee share incentive plan

Share options held by executive members of the Board of Directors to purchase ordinary shares have the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Issue date	Expiry date	Exercise price	2007 Number	2006 Number
2006	2008	€2.33	_	10,000
2006	2010	€3.80	83,000	83,000
2007	2010	€3.85	37,000	_

No share options have been granted to the non-executive members of the Board of Directors under this scheme.

### 31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise bank loans and overdrafts, debentures, convertible preference shares, finance leases, trade payables and hire purchase contracts, and loans given. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various financial assets such as trade receivables and cash and short-term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, primarily interest rate swaps and forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Group's operations and its sources of finance.

It is, and has been throughout 2007 and 2006 the Group's policy that no trading in derivatives shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

#### Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

IFRS 7.33

IFRS 7.40(b)

IFRS 7.33

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Group's policy is to keep between 40% and 60% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest. To manage this, the Group enters into interest rate swaps, in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. These swaps are designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. At 31 December 2007, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 49% of the Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest (2006: 50%).

Interest rate risk table

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). There is no impact on the Group's equity.

	Increase/ decrease in basis points	Effect on profit before tax	IFRS 7.40(a)
2007			
Euro	+15	(16)	
US dollar	+20	(4)	
Euro	-10	11	
US dollar	-15	3	
2006			
Euro	+15	(19)	
US dollar	+20	_	
Euro	-10	12	
US dollar	-15	_	

IAS 24.12

## 31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

### Foreign currency risk

As a result of significant investment operations in the United States, the Group's balance sheet can be affected significantly by movements in the US\$/euro exchange rates. The Group seeks to mitigate the effect of its structural currency exposure by borrowing in US\$. Between 20% and 50% of the Group's investment in non-euro operations will be hedged in this manner.

IFRS 7.33 IFRS 7.40(b)

The Group also has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises from sales or purchases by an operating unit in currencies other than the unit's functional currency. Approximately 23% of the Group's sales are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the operating unit making the sale, whilst almost 95% of costs are denominated in the unit's functional currency. The Group requires all of its operating units to use forward currency contracts to eliminate the currency exposures on any individual transactions in excess of €100,000 for which payment is anticipated more than one month after the Group has entered into a firm commitment for a sale or purchase. The forward currency contracts must be in the same currency as the hedged item. It is the Group's policy not to enter into forward contracts until a firm commitment is in place.

It is the Group's policy to negotiate the terms of the hedge derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise hedge effectiveness.

At 31 December 2007, the Group had hedged 75% of its foreign currency sales for which firm commitments existed at the balance sheet date, extending to March 2008.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group's equity (due to changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts and net investment hedges).

	Increase/ decrease in US dollar rate	Effect on profit before tax €000	Effect on equity €000	IFRS 7.40(a)
2007	+5%	(30)	(154)	
	-5%	20	172	
2006	+5%	(40)	(146)	
	-5%	40	158	

## Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. The maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 21. For transactions that do not occur in the country of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms without the approval of the Head of Credit Control. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

IFRS 7.33 IFRS 7.36

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial investments, loan notes and certain derivative instruments, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

### l iauidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial investments and financial assets (eg accounts receivables, other financial assets) and projected cash flows from operations.

IFRS 7.33

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures, preference shares, finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The Group's policy is that not more than 35% of borrowings should mature in the next 12 month period. 12.1% of the Group's debt will mature in less than one year at 31 December 2007 (2006: 15.6%) based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the financial statements, excluding discontinued operations.

IFRS 7.39(b)

## 31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 31 December 2007 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

		Less than 3	3 to 12				IFRS 7.39(a)
Year ended 31 December 2007	On demand	months	months	1 to 5 years	> 5 years	Total	
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	966	21	1,562	7,554	8,000	18,103	
Convertible preference shares	_	_	_	3,000	_	3,000	
Other liabilities	_	_	_	1,375	_	1,375	
Trade and other payables	3,485	14.687	1,208		_	19,380	
Other financial liabilities	87	180		14	30	311	
	4,538	14,888	2,770	11,943	8,030	42,169	
		Less than 3	3 to 12				
Year ended 31 December 2006	On demand	months	months	1 to 5 years	> 5 years	Total	
	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	€000	
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	2,650	18	1,433	7,572	11,600	23,273	
Convertible preference shares	_	_	_	3,000	_	3,000	
Other liabilities	_	_	_	1,850	_	1,850	
Trade and other payables	4,321	14,904	2,056	_	_	21,281	
Other financial liabilities	49	265	· –	_	_	314	
	7,020	15,187	3,489	12,422	11,600	49,718	-
							•

## **Capital management**

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

IAS 1.124A

IAS 1.124B

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years end 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 20% and 35%. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations. Capital includes convertible preference shares, equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent less the net unrealised gains reserve.

	2007	2006	IAS 1.124B
	€000	€000	
followed by a strategy and by months as	47.500	00.004	
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	17,538	22,334	
Trade and other payables	19,380	21,281	
Less cash and short term deposits	(16,460)	(14,916)	
Net debt	20,458	28,699	
Convertible preference shares	2,778	2,644	
Equity	66,829	49,905	
Net unrealised gains reserve	(168)	(109)	
Total capital	69,439	52,440	
Capital and net debt	89,897	81,139	
Gearing ratio	23%	35%	

## Commentary

IAS 1.124A and B require entities to make qualitative and quantitative disclosures regarding their objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. Good Group (International) Limited has disclosed a gearing ratio as this is the measure the Group uses to monitor capital. However, other measures may be more suitable for other entities.

### 32. Financial instruments

### Fair values

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Group's financial instruments, including those classified under discontinued operations, that are carried in the financial statements:

•	Carrying amount		Fair va	alue
	2007	2006	2007	2006
	€000	€000	€000	€000
Financial assets				
Cash	17,754	14,916	17.754	14,916
Loan notes	3,674	1,685	3,698	1,700
Available-for-sale investments	2,141	1,798	2,141	1,798
Director's loan (Note 17)	13	8	13	8
Derivative financial instruments	152	153	152	153
Financial liabilities				
Bank overdraft	(966)	(2,650)	(966)	(2,650)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings:				
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts	(988)	(994)	(1,063)	(1,216)
Floating rate borrowings*	(12,210)	(9,727)	(12,912)	(8,723)
Fixed rate borrowings	(9,183)	(8,963)	(9,250)	(8,731)
Convertible preference shares	(2,778)	(2,644)	(2,623)	(2,485)
Other financial liabilities	(292)	(303)	(292)	(303)

Includes an 8.25% secured loan carried at fair value as a result of the fair value hedge discussed below.

Market values have been used to determine the fair value of listed convertible preference shares and listed available-for-sale financial assets. The fair value of derivatives and borrowings has been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates. The fair value of loan notes and other financial assets have been calculated using market interest rates. For the valuation of unlisted available-for-sale assets see Note 16.

### IFRS 7.27

IFRS 7.25

IFRS 7.26

## **Hedging activities**

### Cash flow hedges

At 31 December 2007, the Group held two forward exchange contracts designated as hedges of expected future sales to customers in the United States for which the Group has firm commitments. The Group also has two forward currency contracts outstanding at 31 December 2007 designated as hedges of expected future purchases from suppliers in the United Kingdom for which the Group has firm commitments. The forward exchange contracts are being used to hedge the foreign currency risk of the firm commitments.

IFRS 7.22	
-----------	--

IFRS 7.23

	200	7	2006	
	Assets	Liabilities	Assets	Liabilities
	€000	€000	€000	€000
Forward exchange contracts				
Fair value	152	(170)	153	(254)

The critical terms of the forward currency contracts have been negotiated to match the terms of the commitments.

The cash flow hedges of the expected future sales in January 2008 were assessed to be highly effective and a net unrealised gain of €152,000, with a deferred tax liability of €52,000 relating to the hedging instruments is included in equity.

The cash flow hedges of the expected future purchases in February and March 2008 were assessed to be highly effective and as at 31 December 2007, a net unrealised loss of €170,000, with a related deferred tax asset of €58,000 was included in equity in respect of these contracts.

At 31 December 2006, the Group held two forward exchange contracts which were designated as hedges of expected future sales to customers in the United States for which the Group had firm commitments. The Group also had two forward exchange contracts which were designated as hedges of the foreign currency risk of firm commitments to purchase goods from suppliers in the United Kingdom.

The cash flow hedges of the expected future sales in the first quarter of 2007 were assessed to be highly effective and an unrealised gain of  $\le$ 153,000, with a deferred tax liability of  $\le$ 52,000 was included in equity in respect of these contracts. The cash flow hedges of the expected future purchases in the first quarter of 2007 were also assessed to be highly effective and an unrealised loss of  $\le$ 254,000, with a deferred tax asset of  $\le$ 86,000 was included in equity in respect of these contracts.

## 32. Financial instruments (continued)

## Fair value hedge

IFRS 7.22

At 31 December 2007, the Group had an interest rate swap agreement in place with a notional amount of US\$3,600,000 whereby it receives a fixed rate of interest of 8.25% and pays a variable rate equal to LIBOR+0.2% on the notional amount. The swap is being used to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of its 8.25% secured loan. The secured loan and interest rate swap have the same critical terms.

.\_\_ . \_ . .

## Hedge of net investments in foreign operations

Included in loans at 31 December 2007 was a borrowing of US\$3,600,000 (€2,246,000 including the effect of interest rate swap discussed above), which has been designated as a hedge of the net investments in the United States subsidiaries, Wireworks Inc. and Sprinklers Inc. and is being used to hedge the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk on these investments. Gains or losses on the retranslation of this borrowing are transferred to equity to offset any gains or losses on translation of the net investments in the subsidiaries.

IFRS 7.22

The fair value loss on the interest rate swap of €35,000 (2006: Nil) has been recognised in finance costs and offset with a similar gain on the bank borrowings because of the match of the critical terms.

### 33. Events after the balance sheet date

On 14 January 2008, a building with a net book value of  $\leq$ 1,695,000 was severely damaged by flooding and inventories with a net book value of  $\leq$ 857,000 were lost. It is expected that insurance proceeds will fall short of the costs of rebuilding and loss of inventories by  $\leq$ 750,000.

IAS 10.21 IAS 10.10

# **APPENDIX 1 – CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (EXAMPLE OF EXPENSES DISCLOSED BY NATURE)**

for the year ended 31 December 2007

IAS 1.46(b)(c)

## **Commentary**

Good Group (International) Limited presents the income statement disclosing expenses by function. For illustrative purposes, the income statement disclosing expenses by nature is presented in this appendix.

	Notes	2007 €000	2006 €000	IAS 1.46(d), (e)
Continuing operations Sale of goods Rendering of services Rental income Revenue		192,099 17,131 1,404 210,634	174,164 16,537 1,377 192,078	IAS 18.35(b)(i) IAS 18.35(b)(ii) IAS 18.35(c) IAS 1.81(a)
Other income	6.1	1,585	2,548	IAS 1.91
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress Raw materials and consumables used Employee benefits expense Depreciation and amortisation expense Impairment of non-current assets Other expenses Finance costs Finance revenue	6.2 6.3 6.4	(1,133) (148,597) (44,019) (3,817) — (1,088) (1,627) 785	(3,791) (131,425) (43,853) (2,932) (301) (706) (1,561) 724	IAS 1.91 IAS 1.91 IAS 1.91 IAS 1.91 IAS 1.91 IAS 1.83 IAS 1.91 IAS 1.81(b) IAS 1.8(a)
Share of profit of an associate	14	83	81	IAS 1.81(c)
Profit before tax		12,806	10,862	IAS 28.38 IAS 1.83
Income tax expense  Profit for the year from continuing operations  Discontinued operation	7	9,096	(3,232) 7,630	IAS 1.81(d) IAS 12.77 IAS 1.83
Loss after tax for the year from a discontinued operation	8	220	(188)	IAS 1.81(e) IFRS 5.33(a)
Profit for the year		9,316	7,442	IAS 1.81(f)
Attributable to: Equity holders of the parent Minority interests		9,178 138 9,316	7,203 239 <b>7,442</b>	IAS 1.82(b) IAS 1.82(a) IAS 27.33
<ul> <li>Earnings per share         <ul> <li>basic: profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent</li> <li>diluted: profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent</li> </ul> </li> <li>Earnings per share for continuing operations         <ul> <li>basic: profit from continuing operations attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent</li> <li>diluted: profit from continuing operations attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	9	€0.43 €0.43 €0.43	€0.38 €0.37 €0.39	IAS 33.66

## **APPENDIX 2 – CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT – DIRECT METHOD**

for the year ended 31 December 2007

## Commentary

Good Group (International) Limited presents cash flows using the indirect method. However, the cash flow statement prepared using the direct method for operating activities is presented in this appendix for illustrative purposes.

			140 40/10
			IAS 1.8(d)
	2007	2006	IAS 1.46(b), (c) IAS 7.10
Notos			IAS 7.10 IAS 1.46(d), (e)
Notes	₹000	₹000	IAS 1.40(u), (e)
			IAS 7.18(a)
	226,113	235,519	
	(210,635)	(219, 155)	
	(3,582)	(3,311)	IAS 7.35
	11,896	13,053	
			IAS 7.21
	1,990	2,319	IAS 7.16(b)
	(7,655)	(7,325)	IAS 7.16(a)
		(1,192)	IAS 7.16(a)
	(568)	(225)	IAS 7.16(c)
	231	` _	
	(587)	(390)	IAS 7.16(a)
3	(370)	(1,450)	IAS 7.39
	(1,916)	_	
3	(325)	_	IAS 7.16(c)
	785	724	IAS 7.31
26	2,951	642	IAS 20.28
	(6,680)	(6,897)	
			IAS 7.21
	175	200	IAS 7.17(a)
		_	1110 1.11 (u)
	, ,	(76)	IAS 7.17(e)
			IAS 7.17(c)
			IAS 7.17(d)
	. ,	. ,	IAS 7.31
	, , ,	, ,	IAS 7.31
	, ,	(49)	IAS 7.31
	(737)	(2,225)	
	4,479	3,931	
	43	19	IAS 7.28
22	12,266	8,316	
22	16,788	12,266	IAS 7.45
	3 26 22	226,113 (210,635) (3,582) 11,896  1,990 (7,655) (1,216) (568) 231 (587) 3 (370) (1,916) 3 (325) 785 26 2,951 (6,680)  175 (32) (51) 2,740 (149) (1,418) (1,972) (30) (737)  4,479 43 12,266	Notes       €000       €000         226,113       235,519         (210,635)       (219,155)         (3,582)       (3,311)         11,896       13,053         1,990       2,319         (7,655)       (7,325)         (1,216)       (1,192)         (568)       (225)         231       -         (587)       (390)         3       (370)       (1,450)         (1,916)       -         3       (325)       -         785       724         26       2,951       642         (6,680)       (6,897)         175       200         (32)       -         (51)       (76)         2,740       2,645         (149)       (1,784)         (1,418)       (1,561)         (1,972)       (1,600)         (30)       (49)         (737)       (2,225)         4,479       3,931         43       19         12,266       8,316

## APPENDIX 3 – SEGMENT REPORTING UNDER IAS 14 SEGMENT REPORTING

## Commentary

The Good Group (International) Limited illustrative financial statements illustrate the early adoption of IFRS 8 *Operating Segments* for the financial year beginning 1 January 2007.

For entities that do not early adopt IFRS 8, IAS 14 Segment Reporting will continue to apply.

The following disclosures are an extract from Note 5 of Good Group (International) Limited illustrative financial statements, assuming that IAS 14 has been applied. This note illustrates the business segment as the primary reporting segment and the geographical segment as the secondary reporting segment. If an entity uses the geographical segment as its primary reporting segment and the business segments as its secondary reporting segment, additional information is required to be disclosed in accordance with paragraphs 70-72 of IAS 14, not illustrated in this note.

## 5. Segment information

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Group's risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and services produced. Secondary information is reported geographically. The operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.

IAS 14.81 IAS 1.126(b)

The fire prevention equipment segment produces and installs extinguishers, fire prevention equipment and fire retardant fabrics.

The electronics segment is a supplier of electronic equipment for defence, aviation, electrical safety markets and consumer electronic equipment for home use. It offers products and services in the areas of electronics, safety, thermal, and electrical architecture.

The investment property segment leases offices and manufacturing sites owned by the Group but which are surplus to the Group's requirements.

The rubber equipment segment, prior to its discontinuance, produced rubber hosepipes for commercial applications.

Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arm's length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. Segment revenue, segment expense and segment result include transfers between business segments. Those transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

IAS 14.75

The Group's geographical segments are based on the location of the Group's assets. Sales to external customers disclosed in geographical segments are based on the geographical location of its customers.

**Business Segments** 

The following tables present revenue and profit and certain assets and liability information regarding the Group's business segments:

Year ended 31 December 2007		Cont	tinuing Operations	3		Discontinued Operations	Total Operations	
Damana	Fire prevention equipment €000	Electronics €000	Investment property €000	Eliminations €000	Total €000	Rubber equipment €000	€000	IAS 14.67
Revenue Sales to external customers Inter-segment sales	139,842	69,388 7,465	1,404	– (7,465)	210,634 —	42,809 —	253,443 —	
Total revenue	139,842	76,853	1,404	(7,465)	210,634	42,809	253,443	IAS 14.51
Results								
Segment results	10,204	3,992	321	(175)	14,342	302	14,644	IAS 14.52 IAS 14.52(a)
Unallocated expenses Profit before tax, finance costs				-	(777)		(777)	
and finance revenue					13,565	302	13,867	
Net finance costs	83				(842) 83	(89)	(931) 83	140.4404
Share of profit of an associate Profit/(Loss) before income tax					12,806	213	13,019	IAS 14.64
Income tax expense					(3,710)	7	(3,703)	
Net profit for the year				<del>-</del>	9,096	220	9,316	
As at 31 December 2007 Assets and liabilities								
Segment assets	52,402	44,764	12,051	_	109,217	13,056	122,273	IAS 14.55
Investment in associate	764	_	_	_	764 13,130	_	764 13,130	IAS 14.66
Unallocated assets				_	123,111	13,056	136,167	
Total assets Segment liabilities	9,735	5,391	4,704	=	19,830	12,627	32,457	IAS 14.56
Unallocated liabilities	9,733	3,331	4,7 04	_	36,168	12,021	36,168	IAS 14.50
Total liabilities				_	55,998	12,627	68,625	
				•				
Other segment information Capital expenditure:								IAS 14.57
Tangible fixed assets	12,632	2,065	1,216		15,913	_	15,913	
Intangible fixed assets	3,217	777	-		3,994	_	3,994	
Depreciation	3,398	294	_		3,692	105	3,797	IAS 14.58
Amortisation	30	95	_		125	_	125	IAS 14.58
Impairment losses recognised in income statement	_	-	_		_	110	110	IAS 36.129(a)
Fair value loss on investment properties		_	306		306		306	IAS 14.61
Provisions and employee benefit liabilities	1,013	611	59		1,683	_	1,683	IAS 14.61

benefit liabilities

816

679

27

1,522

Business Segments Year ended						Discontinued	Total	
31 December 2006		Con	tinuing Operation	S		Operations	Operations	
	Fire prevention equipment €000	Electronics €000	Investment property €000	Eliminations €000	Total €000	Rubber equipment €000	€000	IAS 14.67
Revenue Sales to external customers Inter-segment sales	123,905 —	66,796 7,319	1,377	– (7,319)	192,078 —	45,206 —	237,284	
Total revenue	123,905	74,115	1,377	(7,319)	192,078	45,206	237,284	IAS 14.51
Results								
Segment results	6,133	6,267	314	(85)	12,629	(110)	12,519	IAS 14.52 IAS 14.52(a)
Unallocated expenses	0,100	5,201	014	(00)	(1,011)	(110)	(1,011)	
Profit/(Loss) before tax, finance costs and finance revenue				_	11,618	(110)	11,508	
Net finance costs	0.4				(837)	(83)	(920)	
Share of profit of an associate	81				81		81	IAS 14.64
Profit/(Loss) before income tax Income tax expense					10.862 (3,232)	(193) 5	10,669 (3,227)	
Net profit for the year				-	7,630	(188)	7,442	
not pront for the your				-	-,,,,,,,	(===)	.,	
As at 31 December 2006 Assets and liabilities								
Segment assets	34,359	34,159	9,887	_	78,405	11,587	89,992	IAS 14.55
Investment in associate	681	_	_	_	681	_	681	IAS 14.66
Unallocated assets  Total assets				=	15,132 <b>94,218</b>	11,587	15,132 <b>105,805</b>	
Segment liabilities	10,966	5,886	3,527		21,379	12,378	33,757	IAS 14.56
Unallocated liabilities	10,300	3,000	3,321	_	21,403	12,370	21,403	IAO 14.JU
Total liabilities				<del>-</del>	42,782	12,378	55,160	
Other segment information								
Capital expenditure:								IAS 14.57
Tangible fixed assets	5,260	3,842	1,192	_	10,294	_	10,294	
Intangible fixed assets Depreciation	2,460	521 298		_	521 2,758	324	521 3,082	IAS 14.58
Amortisation	2,400	296 174	_	_	174	324 —	174	IAS 14.58
Impairment losses recognised in		<b></b> .					'	
profit or loss	301	_	_	_	301	_	301	IAS 36.129(a)
Fair value loss on investment			200		200		200	140 1401
properties Provisions and employee		=	300	=	300	_	300	IAS 14.61
hanefit liabilities	016	670	27		1 522		1 500	140 1461

1,522 IAS 14.61

**Geographical Segments** 

The following tables present revenue, expenditure and certain asset information regarding the Group's geographical segments:

Year ended 31 December 2007	Euroland	United States	Total	
Deurania	€000	€000	€000	
Revenue Sales to external customers	201,094	52,349	253,443	IAS 14.69(a)
Less sales attributable to discontinued operations	(42,809)	J2,349 —	(42,809)	IAS 14.09(a)
Revenue from continuing operations	158,285	52,349	210,634	-
	200,200	0_,0 .0		
Inter-segment sales	4,249	3,216	7,465	
Segment revenue	162,534	55,565	218,099	
				-
Other segment information				
Segment assets	102,086	20,187	122,273	IAS 14.69(b)
Unallocated assets	_	-	13,130	
Investment in an associate	_	764	764	-
Total assets			136,167	•
Capital expenditure:				IAS 14.69(c)
Tangible fixed assets	13,149	2,764	15,913	IAS 14.09(c)
Intangible assets	3,994	_	3,994	
	3,00 .		3,55	
Veer anded 24 December 2006	Fundand	United Ctates	Total	
Year ended 31 December 2006	Euroland €000	United States	Total €000	
	Euroland €000	United States €000	Total €000	
Revenue	€000	€000	€000	IAS 14.69(a)
Revenue Sales to external customers			€000 237,284	IAS 14.69(a)
Revenue	€000 187,228	€000	€000	IAS 14.69(a)
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022	€000 50,056 ————————————————————————————————————	€000 237,284 (45,206) 192,078	IAS 14.69(a)
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022 4,000	€000 50,056 - 50,056 3,319	€000 237,284 (45,206) 192,078 7,319	IAS 14.69(a)
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022	€000 50,056 ————————————————————————————————————	€000 237,284 (45,206) 192,078	IAS 14.69(a)
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations Inter-segment sales Segment revenue	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022 4,000	€000 50,056 - 50,056 3,319	€000 237,284 (45,206) 192,078 7,319	IAS 14.69(a)
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations Inter-segment sales Segment revenue Other segment information	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022 4,000 146,022	€000 50,056 	€000 237,284 (45,206) 192,078 7,319 199,397	
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations Inter-segment sales Segment revenue Other segment information Segment assets	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022 4,000	€000 50,056 - 50,056 3,319	€000 237,284 (45,206) 192,078 7,319 199,397	IAS 14.69(a) - IAS 14.69(b)
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations Inter-segment sales Segment revenue Other segment information Segment assets Unallocated assets	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022 4,000 146,022	€000 50,056 	€000  237,284 (45,206)  192,078  7,319  199,397  89,992 15,132	
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations Inter-segment sales Segment revenue  Other segment information Segment assets Unallocated assets Investment in an associate	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022 4,000 146,022	€000 50,056 	€000  237,284 (45,206)  192,078  7,319  199,397  89,992 15,132 681	
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations Inter-segment sales Segment revenue Other segment information Segment assets Unallocated assets	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022 4,000 146,022	€000 50,056 	€000  237,284 (45,206)  192,078  7,319  199,397  89,992 15,132	
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations Inter-segment sales Segment revenue  Other segment information Segment assets Unallocated assets Investment in an associate Total assets	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022 4,000 146,022	€000 50,056 	€000  237,284 (45,206)  192,078  7,319  199,397  89,992 15,132 681	IAS 14.69(b)
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations Inter-segment sales Segment revenue  Other segment information Segment assets Unallocated assets Investment in an associate Total assets  Cash expenditure:	€000 187,228 (45,206) 142,022 4,000 146,022	€000 50,056 	€000  237,284 (45,206)  192,078  7,319  199,397  89,992 15,132 681 105,805	
Revenue Sales to external customers Less sales attributable to discontinued operations Revenue from continuing operations Inter-segment sales Segment revenue  Other segment information Segment assets Unallocated assets Investment in an associate Total assets	€000  187,228 (45,206)  142,022  4,000  146,022  73,704	€000 50,056 - 50,056 3,319 53,375 16,288 - 681	€000  237,284 (45,206)  192,078  7,319  199,397  89,992 15,132 681	IAS 14.69(b)

## Commentary

When an entity does not early adopt IFRS 8, they must also disclose:

- the fact that IFRS 8 has been issued but is not yet effective, and
- known or reasonably estimable information relevant to assessing the possible impact of applying IFRS 8 in the period of initial application.

This information is required by paragraph 30 of IAS 8 and an example of such disclosure is given below.

Standards issued but not yet effective

IFRS 8 Operating Segments was issued in November 2006 and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires entities to disclose segment information based on the information reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker. The Group has determined that the operating segments disclosed in IFRS 8 will be the same as the business segments disclosed under IAS 14. The impact of this standard on the other segment disclosures is still to be determined. As this is a disclosure standard, it will have no impact on the financial position or financial performance of the Group when implemented in 2009.

## APPENDIX 4 – ILLUSTRATIVE DISCLOSURES FOR AN ENTITY THAT APPLIED IFRS 1 WHEN IT FIRST ADOPTED IFRS

## **Commentary**

This Appendix to the financial statements illustrates the additional information to be included in the accounting policies when an entity adopted IFRS for the first time in previous years in accordance with IFRS 1 (for illustrative purposes this is assumed to be 1 January 2006). Information is included to provide details about how the IFRS 1 exemptions were applied.

Readers should view this illustration as **additional** explanation to be given in the accounting policy section of the Group (see page 15). The illustration is not intended to be a complete list and does not include all instances where the IFRS 1 exemptions have an impact on the opening asset and liabilities recognised.

## Goodwill

Goodwill arising on Business Combinations that occurred before 1 January 2006 has not been restated from Local GAAP, which was recognised as an asset and amortised over its useful life.

## Property, plant and equipment

At the date of transition to IFRS, Good Group (International) Limited used previous revaluations of property, plant and equipment as deemed cost.

The component of assets arising from the recognition of a decommissioning liability was calculated as of 1 January 2006, and therefore does not reflect retrospective application of IFRIC 1 prior to that date.

## **Employee benefits**

As at 1 January 2006, Good Group (International) Limited recognised all cumulative actuarial gains and losses in equity.

## Foreign currency translation

As at 1 January 2006, Good Group (International) Limited did not recognise the cumulative foreign currency translation differences that related to periods prior to this date. Therefore, the cumulative foreign currency translation differences are deemed to be zero as at 1 January 2006.

## APPENDIX 5 – ILLUSTRATIVE DISCLOSURES FOR A FIRST-TIME ADOPTER OF IFRS

## Commentary

This note to the financial statements illustrates one way in which a company might choose to set out its explanation of its transition to IFRS. The format illustrated is based on Example 11 in IFRS 1. However, in providing a suggested format for disclosure, this example is not intended to, and does not, illustrate every potential GAAP difference that companies may have to disclose.

Please note that the following illustrative disclosures are not related to the financial statements of Good Group (International) Limited illustrated in this publication and should not be read in conjunction with the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity nor cash flow statement.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with local generally accepted accounting practice (Local GAAP). These financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2007, are the first the Group has prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Accordingly, the Group has prepared financial statements which comply with IFRS applicable for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007 as described in the accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Group opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 January 2006, the Group's date of transition to IFRS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Group in restating its Local GAAP balance sheet as at 1 January 2006 and its previously published Local GAAP financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006.

## **Exemptions applied**

IFRS 1 *First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards* allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the general requirement to apply IFRS as effective for December 2007 year ends retrospectively. The Group has applied the following exemptions:

- IFRS 3 *Business Combinations* has not been applied to acquisitions of subsidiaries or of interests in associates and joint ventures that occurred before 1 January 2006.
- Certain items of property, plant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet prepared in accordance with local GAAP on the basis of valuations performed in 2004. The Group has elected to regard those fair values as deemed cost at the date of the revaluation.
- The Group has recognised all cumulative actuarial gains and losses on pensions and other post-retirement benefits as at 1 January 2006, directly in equity. The Group has elected to disclose amounts required by paragraph 120A(p) of IAS 19 prospectively from the date of transition.
- Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero as at 1 January 2006.
- IFRS 2 *Share-based Payment* has not been applied to equity instruments that were granted on or before 7 November 2002, nor has it been applied to equity instruments granted after 7 November 2002 that vested before 1 January 2006. For cash-settled share-based payment arrangements, the Group has not applied IFRS 2 to liabilities that were settled before 1 January 2006.
- The Group has applied the transitional provision in IFRIC 4 *Determining whether an Arrangement contains a lease* and has assessed all arrangements as at the date of transition.

## Group reconciliation of equity as at 1 January 2006 (date of transition to IFRS)

		Local GAAP €000	Remeasurements €000	IFRS €000
Non-current assets		₹000	₹000	₹000
Property, plant and equipment		22,024	_	22,024
Investment properties		7,091	_	7,091
Intangible assets		2,220	_	2,220
Start-up expenses	Α	300	(300)	· –
Financial assets		3,899		3,899
Investments accounted for using the equity method		878	_	878
Available-for-sale financial assets	В	2,161	420	2,581
		38,573	120	38,693
Current assets				
Trade and other receivables	С	21,616	1,138	22,754
Inventories		23,158	_	23,158
Other financial assets	D	325	431	756
Cash and cash equivalents		10,816	_	10,816
		55,915	1,569	57,484
TOTAL ASSETS		94,488	1,689	96,177
Conital and recoming				
Capital and reserves Equity share capital		25,500		25,500
Treasury shares		25,500 (774)	_	25,500 (774)
Retained earnings		27,121	2,192	29,313
<u> </u>		51,847	2,192	54,039
Total equity		51,847	2,192	34,039
Non-current liabilities				
Other payables		352	_	352
Financial liabilities		16,359	_	16,359
Deferred tax liabilities	H	_	305	305
Defined benefit pension plan deficit	F	-	221	221
Provisions	G	250	(250)	
		16,961	276	17,237
Current liabilities				
Trade and other payables	E	16,911	(779)	16,132
Other liabilities		4,872		4,872
Income tax payable		3,897	_	3,897
		25,680	(779)	24,901
Total liabilities		42,641	(503)	42,138
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		94,488	1,689	96,177

## Group reconciliation of equity as at 31 December 2006

	Notes	Local GAAP €000	Remeasurements €000	IFRS €000
Non-current assets		₹000	₹000	₹000
Property, plant and equipment		24,329	_	24,329
Investment properties		7,983	_	7,983
Intangible assets		2,386	_	2,386
Start-up expenses	Α	200	(200)	· _
Financial assets		3,028	· -	3,028
Investments accounted for using the equity method		2,516	_	2,516
Available-for-sale financial assets	В	2,000	350	2,350
		42,442	150	42,592
Current assets				
Trade and other receivables	С	23,815	1,253	25,068
Inventories		25,330	_	25,330
Other financial assets	D	378	_	378
Cash and cash equivalents		8,644	_	8,644
		58,167	1,253	59,420
TOTAL ASSETS		100,609	1,403	102,012
Capital and reserves				
Equity share capital		25,500	_	25,500
Treasury shares		(774)	_	(774)
Retained earnings		26,568	1,816	28,384
Total equity		51,294	1,816	53,110
Non-current liabilities				
Other payables		61	_	61
Financial liabilities		18,276	_	18,276
Deferred tax liabilities	H	_	135	135
Defined benefit pension plan deficit	F	_	612	612
Provisions	G	250	(250)	
		18,587	497	19,084
Current liabilities				
Trade and other payables	E	22,681	(910)	21,771
Other liabilities		4,058	· ,	4,058
Income tax payable		3,989	_	3,989
• •		30,728	(910)	29,818
Total liabilities		49,315	(413)	48,902
TOTAL FOULTV AND LIADULITIES		100,609	1,403	102,012
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		100,003	1,703	102,012

## Group reconciliation of profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2006

	Notes	Local GAAP €000	Remeasurements €000	IFRS €000
Revenue Costs of sales	С	161,640 128,733	115 —	161,755 28,733
Gross profit		32,907	115	33,022
Distribution costs Administrative expenses Pension costs	I F	12,364 12,164 453	_ (100) 391	12,364 12,064 844
Other expenses		706 25,687	291	706 25,978
Group trading profit		7,220	(176)	7,044
Other operating income Share of profits of investments using the equity method		2,548 1,638	- -	2,548 1,638
Group operating profit		11,406	(176)	11,230
Finance revenue Finance costs Profit before taxation		977 (1,722) 10,661		977 (1,722) 10,485
Tax expense	Н	(2,779)	170	(2,609)
Profit for the year		7,882	(6)	7,876

## Commentary

It would not be acceptable to merely refer to an earlier announcement published by the company as IFRS 1 requires the disclosures to appear within the financial statements.

## Restatement of equity from Local GAAP to IFRS

Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1 January 2006 and 31 December 2006:

### A Start-up Expenses

Under Local GAAP the Group capitalised the cost of incorporation of a new subsidiary and depreciated this on a straight-line basis over five years. As such costs do not qualify for recognition as an asset under IFRS this asset is derecognised.

## B Available-for-sale financial assets

Under Local GAAP, available-for-sale financial assets were carried at the lower of cost or realisable value. The fair value of these assets as at 1 January 2006 is 2,581. The resulting gains at the date of transition are included in the revaluation reserve in equity.

## C Trade and other receivables

Under Local GAAP the provision for impairment of receivables consists of both a specific and general amount. IFRS does not permit recognition of a general provision and this amount has been eliminated.

## D Other financial assets

The fair value of a forward foreign exchange contract is recognised under IFRS, and was not recognised under previous Local GAAP. The contract has been designated as at the date of transition to IFRS as a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge of a highly probable forecast sale. The corresponding adjustment has been recognised in the hedge reserve in equity.

## E Trade and other payables

Under Local GAAP proposed dividends are recognised as a liability in the period to which they relate, irrespective of when they are declared. Under IFRS a proposed dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared by the company (usually when approved by shareholders in general meeting) or paid. In the case of the Group this occurs after period end. Therefore the liability recorded has been derecognised.

## F Defined benefit obligation

Under Local GAAP the Group recognised costs related to its pension plan on a cash basis. Under IFRS, pension liabilities are recognised on an actuarial basis.

For the transition from Local GAAP to IFRS the group has applied the exemption in IFRS 1.20 where all cumulative actuarial gains and losses at the date of transition to IFRS have been recognised.

## **G** Provisions

Under Local GAAP a restructuring provision has been recorded relating to downsizing head office activities. This amount does not qualify for recognition as a liability according IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, and has been derecognised.

## H Deferred tax liability

The various transitional adjustments lead to different temporary differences. According to the accounting policies in Note 2 the Group has to account for such differences. In order to calculate the deferred tax amount a tax rate of 25% has been applied.

Additional deferred tax has been provided on the revaluation of investment properties as IFRS require that deferred tax be recognised. Under Local GAAP no deferred tax was provided for the revaluation as the group had no intention to dispose of the properties.

## I Share-based payments

Under Local GAAP, the Group recognised only the cost of awards for the long-term incentive plan as an expense. IFRS requires the fair value of the options to be determined using an appropriate pricing model charged over the vesting period. Therefore an additional expense has been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2006.

### J Cash flow statement

The transition from Local GAAP to IFRS has not had a material impact on the cash flow statement.

## APPENDIX 6 – XBRL: THE EXCHANGE OF INTERACTIVE FINANCIAL REPORTING DATA

## **Commentary**

To view an illustrative web version of the primary financial statements and selected note disclosures of Good Group (International) Limited rendered in XBRL, together with an explanation of the technology and how it can be used to exchange information in a better, faster and cheaper way, please see: <a href="https://www.ey.com/xbrl/goodgroup">www.ey.com/xbrl/goodgroup</a>.

## Background

Today's online digital formats such as web pages (eg HTML) or attachments (eg Adobe PDF or Microsoft Word) provide data that can easily be read by people. However they are not easily read by computers, even with the use of powerful search engines.

eXtensible Business Reporting Language ('XBRL') makes the business data contained in a set of IFRS financial statements 'machine readable' or 'smart', making the data 'interactive'. It does this by classifying financial statement components with predefined tags. This helps an enabled computer application to identify unique pieces of data and to place them in their context.

When this enabling technology is put in place, market participants may select any information they want from a set of IFRS financial statements in a way that best suits their decision needs. This is because this computer technology, via its digital tags, provides a platform to manipulate and exchange business data with great precision and speed.

## Benefits of interactive data

The benefits of using *interactive data* like XBRL are significant to both preparers and users of financial statements. Tagging data in XBRL eliminates the requirement to re-key information and results in cost savings, faster analysis, and more reliable handling of data which leads to more in-depth and accelerated decision making. In addition, the XBRL language is flexible and is intended to support all current aspects of reporting across countries and industries. Its extensible nature means that it can be adjusted to meet particular business requirements, even at the individual organisation level.

Better	Faster	Cheaper
More accurate	No need to re-key, validate and scrub data	More automated data capture and validation
More accessible	End user can access immediately upon submission	Not dependent on specific software
Easier to compare and analyse information	Can be 'refreshed' with little effort	Less effort needed to analyse data contained in reports

## Who develops XBRL and its technical specifications?

Ernst & Young is a founding member of XBRL International, a not-for-profit consortium currently made up of around 550 companies and agencies from around the world whose aim is to build the XBRL language and promote and support its adoption. XBRL International now covers more than 20 local jurisdictions (including a general IASB jurisdiction) that focus on promotion and development of XBRL in their region.

## IASB involvement

The IASB was a founding member of the XBRL International consortium and happens to be the only jurisdiction not represented as a single country. The IASB quickly saw the potential of XBRL and recognised a need to support and encourage the development of taxonomies (ie the electronic classification system of the financial statement components). A comprehensive taxonomy (4000+ elements) that links IFRS standards to XBRL has been recently updated and there is a dedicated team at the IASB who promote and support the development of IFRS related XBRL tags around the world.

## Who is currently using XBRL for IFRS information?

As the potential of XBRL has become more widely known, there has been an increase in interest from regulators, companies and accountancy firms. Some countries now have quite advanced XBRL frameworks (with regulators now stipulating the mandatory use of XBRL as a reporting tool). Recent examples include:

- The Committee of European Banking Supervisors (CEBS) has developed two XBRL-based frameworks in an effort to reduce the reporting burden through future alignment of supervisory practices. There is a standardised consolidated financial reporting (FINREP) framework for credit institutions that are required to submit to their supervisory authorities' periodic prudential reports under IFRS. There is also a common solvency reporting (COREP) framework for credit institutions and investment firms under the European Union capital requirements regime. These frameworks are compulsory for filings in some countries, including Poland, France, Luxembourg and Belgium.
- The Netherlands Taxonomy Project (NTP) is now well underway and it is estimated that it will reduce regulatory compliance costs in that country by more than €00 million per annum. From 1 January 2007, businesses and intermediaries in the Netherlands can report their financial data to the government using the NTP taxonomy. Data is then forwarded to the Chamber of Commerce, the Tax Department and Statistics Netherlands, using XBRL.
- The Australian Government recently announced that more than AU\$200 million will be spent over the next three years to implement Standard Business Reporting (SBR). This will enable preparers to send financial reports to participating agencies such as the Australian Bureau of Statistics, the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority, the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, the Australian Taxation Office, and potentially, the State Revenue Offices. The role of XBRL and IFRS in this project is expected to be significant because SBR has close links with the Netherlands Taxonomy Project and the core IFRS taxonomy work undertaken at the IASB.

## Who else is using interactive data?

The XBRL technology is not solely confined to IFRS, but is available for all forms of electronic business reports as illustrated below:

- The US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) is now spending US\$54 million to transform the agency's public-company filing system, known as EDGAR, from a form-based electronic filing to a dynamic, real-time search tool with interactive capabilities. A number of companies such as General Electric, Pepsi Co, 3M and Microsoft have all taken up this opportunity.
- The SEC recently published final rule amendments to enable mutual funds to submit risk/return summary information from their prospectuses using XBRL under its voluntary filing program. This permits mutual funds to submit tagged risk/return summary information using an XBRL taxonomy developed by the US Investment Company Institute (ICI).
- Companies House, the UK agency responsible for collecting and publishing company data, has adopted XBRL for
  electronic filing of audit exempt accounts. Companies House has said it intends to expand gradually the scope of
  the XBRL filing service to larger companies.
- The UK Revenue (HMRC) confined the mandatory use of XBRL for all company tax returns due until after March 2010. It is developing enhancements to its CT Online service, which will enable financial statements and tax computations to be submitted in XBRL rather than PDF.
- The US Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) has enabled its call reporting system with XBRL. It implemented the first mandatory e-filing system that uses XBRL, maintaining a secure shared database containing all of the quarterly filings of the country's estimated 8,400 financial institutions.

- In China, the Listed Company Information Disclosure Taxonomy Framework allows companies that conform to China Listed Company Information Disclosure Regulations to tag financial statements in XBRL. This set of taxonomies was developed by the Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE).
- In Japan, the Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE), the Japanese Financial Services Agency (FSA) and the Bank of Japan among others use XBRL.

Other regulators and exchange commissions around the world are also starting to see that XBRL offers a very good opportunity to present company data better, faster and cheaper.

## **Next steps?**

As with any technology that changes an existing process, determining when to adopt is critical for the company concerned. Adopting too early may result in unnecessary cost while adopting too late, may result in missed opportunities. Although widespread adoption of XBRL must continue to pass various technical, regulatory and administrative milestones, you may want to consider the following when developing an implementation strategy:

## LEARN

- Learn about XBRL and share your knowledge within your company.
- Speak with other companies who have participated in the XBRL programs and gain from their experience.
- Talk with an Ernst & Young representative to obtain more information about XBRL (details below).

## **EVALUATE**

- Identify business reporting areas that could benefit from XBRL.
- Determine whether your current financial applications are XBRL-enabled.
- Assess whether your organisation should participate in the relevant XBRL programs or is obliged to file with a local regulator using XBRL.

## ACT

- Now may be the right time to participate in the various XBRL programs for financial institutions, investor relations leaders and companies on the leading edge of reporting technology.
- Start checking XBRL.org and IASB.org for the appropriate taxonomies and requirements.
- Develop a project charter and implementation plan for an XBRL-based project.
- Consider independent verification of the XBRL data to provide assurance to third parties that the information is complete, accurate, reliable and timely.

## **Further information**

Further information on interactive data can be obtained from <a href="www.ey.com/xbrl">www.ey.com/xbrl</a>. You can also visit XBRL International at <a href="www.xbrl.org">www.xbrl.org</a> and the IASB website at <a href="www.iasb.org/xbrl">www.iasb.org/xbrl</a>, or contact Josef Macdonald of Ernst & Young Global Professional Practice, at <a href="josef.macdonald@uk.ey.com">josef.macdonald@uk.ey.com</a>.

## **INDEX**

IAS 1 Presentation of	IAS 1.76(a)(vi)	58
Financial Statements	IAS 1.76(b)	59
	IAS 1.81(a)	10, 71
IAS 1.8(a)71	IAS 1.81(b)	10, 71
IAS 1.8(d)72	IAS 1.81(c)	71
IAS 1.1417	IAS 1.81(c)	10
IAS 1.46(a)11, 13	IAS 1.81(d)	10, 71
IAS 1.46(b)11, 13, 14, 17, 72	IAS 1.81(e)	10 ,71
IAS 1.46(c)11, 13, 14, 17, 72	IAS 1.81(f)	10, 71
IAS 1.46(d)10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 17, 21, 71, 72	IAS 1.82(a)	
IAS 1.46(e)10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 17, 71, 72	IAS 1.82(b)	
IAS 1.5111	IAS 1.83	
IAS 1.5711	IAS 1.86	
IAS 1.6011, 61	IAS 1.88	
IAS 1.68(a)11	IAS 1.91	
IAS 1.68(b)11	IAS 1.92	
IAS 1.68(c)11	IAS 1.93	
IAS 1.68(d)11	IAS 1.95	
IAS 1.68(e)11	IAS 1.96(a)	
IAS 1.68(g)11	IAS 1.96(b)	
IAS 1.68(h)11	IAS 1.96(c)	
IAS 1.68(i)11	IAS 1.97(a)	
IAS 1.68(j)11	IAS 1.97(b)	
IAS 1.68(k)11	IAS 1.97(c)	
IAS 1.68(1)11	IAS 1.103(a)	
IAS 1.68(m)11	IAS 1.108(a)	
IAS 1.68(n)11	IAS 1.108(b)	
IAS 1.68(o)11	IAS 1.113	
IAS 1.68(p)11	IAS 1.124A	
IAS 1.68A(a)11	IAS 1.124AIAS 1.124B	
IAS 1.68A(b)11		
IAS 1.6911	IAS 1.125(a)	
IAS 1.6911	IAS 1.126(a)	
IAS 1.7011	IAS 1.126(b)	
IAS 1.75(a)46	IAS 1.126(c)	64, 65
IAS 1.75(b)56	IAS 2 Invent	tories
IAS 1.75(c)56		
IAS 1.75(d)11	IAS 2.10	26
IAS 1.75(e)11, 58	IAS 2.12	
IAS 1.76(a)(i)11, 58	IAS 2.13	
IAS 1.76(a)(iii)58	IAS 2.25	
IAS 1.76(a)(v)61	IAS 2.36(a)	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	20

IAS 2.36(b)	.56 IAS 10.1717
IAS 2.36(d)	.40 IAS 10.2170
IAS 2.36(e)	.56
IAS 2.6	.26 IAS 12 Income Taxes
IAS 2.9	
IAS 7 Cash Flow Statements	IAS 12.2431 IAS 12.3731
TAS / Cash Flow Statements	IAS 12.37
IAS 7.6	
IAS 7.10	
IAS 7.16	
IAS 7.16(b)	
IAS 7.16(c)	
IAS 7.17(a)	,
IAS 7.17(c)	
IAS 7.17(d)	· /
IAS 7.17(e)	· ·
IAS 7.18(a)	N /
IAS 7.18(b)	
IAS 7.21	
IAS 7.28	
IAS 7.31	×,
IAS 7.35	(6)(7)
IAS 7.3915,	
IAS 7.40(a)	
IAS 7.40(b)34,	
IAS 7.40(c)34,	35 IAS 12.82A
IAS 7.40(d)33,	35 IAS 12.8742
IAS 7.43	
IAS 7.4515, 57,	72 IAS 14 Segment Reporting
IAS 7.46	.26
IAS 7.50(a)	.57 IAS 14.5174, 75
TACOA	IAS 14.5274, 75
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting	IAS 14.52(a)74, 75
Estimates and Errors	IAS 14.5574, 75
IAS 8.14	.18 IAS 14.5774, 75
IAS 8.28	.18 IAS 14.5874, 75
IAS 8.30	.33 IAS 14.6174, 75
	IAS 14.6474, 75
IAS 10 Events after the	
<b>Balance Sheet Date</b>	IAS 14.6774, 75
	IAS 14.69(a)76
IAS 10.10	.70 IAS 14.69(b)76

IAS 14.69(c)	76	IAS 18.30(c)	30
IAS 14.75	73	IAS 18.35(a)	30
IAS 14.81	73	IAS 18.35(b)(i)	10, 71
71010		IAS 18.35(b)(ii)	10, 71
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment		IAS 18.35(c)	10, 71
IAS 16.16(c)	20	IAS 19 Employee	Benefits
IAS 16.39		IAS 19.64	20
IAS 16.73(a)		IAS 19.04	
IAS 16.73(b)			
IAS 16.73(c)		IAS 19.93IAS 19.96	
IAS 16.73(d)		IAS 19.90	
IAS 16.73(e)		IAS 19.120	
IAS 16.74(a)		IAS 19.120A(a)	
IAS 16.74(b)		IAS 19.120A(c)	
IAS 16.74(c)		IAS 19.120A(d)	
IAS 16.77		IAS 19.120A(t)	
IAS 16.77(a)-(e)		IAS 19.120A(f)	
IAS 16.77(f)		IAS 19.120A(g)	
		IAS 19.120A(j)	
IAS 17 Leases		IAS 19.120A(j)	
		IAS 19.120A(I)	
IAS 17.8		IAS 19.120A(m)	
IAS 17.20		IAS 19.120A(n)	
IAS 17.25		IAS 19.120A(o)	
IAS 17.27		IAS 19.120A(p)	
IAS 17.31(a)		IAS 19.120A(q)	
IAS 17.31(b)		11 15 15 17 (q)	
IAS 17.31(e)		IAS 20 Accoun	U
IAS 17.33		Government ( and Disclosu	
IAS 17.35(a)		Government As	
IAS 17.35(c)			
IAS 17.35(d)		IAS 20.7	30
IAS 17.50		IAS 20.12	30
IAS 17.52		IAS 20.24	11
IAS 17.56(a)		IAS 20.26	30
IAS 17.56(c)	63	IAS 20.28	
IAS 18 Revenue		IAS 20.39(b)	39, 62
		IAS 20.39(c)	39
IAS 18.8	31		
IAS 18.14	30	IAS 21 The Effects of	
IAS 18.20	30	Changes in Exchange	
IAS 18.26	30		
IAS 18.30(a)	30	IAS 21.23(a)	21

IAS 21.23(b)21	IAS 28.40	64
IAS 21.23(c)21	IAS 28.40(a)	64
IAS 21.2821	IAS 28.38	10, 11, 71
IAS 21.3921		
IAS 21.4821	IAS 31 Investn	
IAS 21.52(a)40	Joint Ventu	ires
IAS 21.52(b)13, 14, 59		
IAS 21.5921	IAS 31.54(a)	
	IAS 31.54(b)	
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs	IAS 31.55	
	IAS 31.56	36
IAS 23.921		
	IAS 32 Financial I Disclosure and P	
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures	Disclosure and P	resentation
Tarty Disclosures	IAS 32.18	27
IAS 24.1264, 65, 66	IAS 32.28	
IAS 24.14	IAS 32.33	
IAS 24.16(a)	IAS 32.35	
IAS 24.16(b)	IAS 32.38	
IAS 24.16(c)	IAS 32.39	
IAS 24.16(d)	IAS 32.AG31(a)	
IAS 24.1764		
IAS 24.17 (b)	IAS 33 Earnings	Per Share
IAS 24.20(h)		
IAS 24.21	IAS 33.45	29
11.5 2 1.21	IAS 33.66	10, 71
IAS 27 Consolidated and	IAS 33.68	43, 45
Separate Financial Statements	IAS 33.70(a)	45
	IAS 33.70(b)	45
IAS 27.1217	IAS 33.70(d)	45
IAS 24.2264		
IAS 27.2417	IAS 36 Impairmen	it of Assets
IAS 27.2617	110000	2.4
IAS 27.2817	IAS 36.9	
IAS 27.3017	IAS 36.10(a)	
IAS 27.3310, 11, 17, 71	IAS 36.55	
IAS 28 Investments	IAS 36.60	
in Associates	IAS 36.86	
	IAS 36.110	
IAS 28.1324	IAS 36.114	
IAS 28.2624	IAS 36.117	
IAS 28.3124	IAS 36.119	
IAS 28.37(b)49	IAS 36.126(a)	•
IAS 28.37(e)24	IAS 36.129(a)	
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	IAS 36.130	46

IAS 36.134(a)49	IAS 38.118(c)	48
IAS 36.134(b)49	IAS 38.118(d)	23
IAS 36.134(c)49	IAS 38.118(e)	48
IAS 36.134(d)(i)50	IAS 38.122(a)	23
IAS 36.134(d)(ii)50	IAS 38.126	40
IAS 36.134(d)(iii)49		
IAS 36.134(d)(iv)49	IAS 39 Financial In Recognition and M	
IAS 36.134(d)(v)49	Accognition and M	<u>casurement</u>
IAS 36.134(f)50	IAS 39.9	25 27
IAS 36.134(f)(i)50	IAS 39.17(a)	•
IAS 36.134(f)(ii)50	IAS 39.18(b)	
IAS 36.134(f)(iii)50	IAS 39.20(c)	
TACAT D	IAS 39.30(a)	
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities	IAS 39.30(b)	
and Contingent Assets	IAS 39.38	
	IAS 39.39	
IAS 37.14	IAS 39.41	
IAS 37.45	IAS 39.43	
IAS 37.4728	IAS 39.46	, ,
IAS 37.5328	IAS 39.46(a)	
IAS 37.5428	IAS 39.46(b)	
IAS 37.5928	IAS 39.47	
IAS 37.6028	IAS 39.47(c)	
IAS 37.84(a)61	IAS 39.48A	
IAS 37.84(b)61	IAS 39.55(a)	25, 27,31
IAS 37.84(c)61	IAS 39.55(b)	
IAS 37.84(d)61	IAS 39.56	
IAS 37.84(e)61	IAS 39.58	26
IAS 37.8561	IAS 39.63	26
IAS 37.8663, 64	IAS 39.65	26
IAS 38 Intangible Assets	IAS 39.67	25, 26
TAS 30 Intaligible Assets	IAS 39.68	26
IAS 38.2423	IAS 39.69	26
IAS 38.54	IAS 39.70	26
IAS 38.57	IAS 39.88	32
IAS 38.74	IAS 39.89	32
IAS 38.88	IAS 39.92	32
IAS 38.95	IAS 39.93	32
IAS 38.97	IAS 39.97	32
IAS 38.104	IAS 39.98(b)	26
IAS 38.107	IAS 39.100	32
IAS 38.107	IAS 39.101	32
IAS 38.118(a)	IAS 39.102	32
IAS 38.118(b)	IAS 39.102(a)	13, 14
11.10.00.110(0)		

IAS 39.AG1425, 27	IFRS 2.50	13, 14	
IAS 39 AG71-7350	IFRS 2.51(a)	40, 51	
IAS 39 AG74-7950	IFRS 2.51(b)	52	
	IFRS 2.53	29, 30	
IAS 40 Investment Property	IFRS 2.56	52	
IAS 40.5722	IFRS 3 Business	Combinations	
IAS 40.6622	<del></del>		
IAS 40.6922	IFRS 3.24	33, 34, 35	
IAS 40.75(a)22			
IAS 40.75(b)22			
IAS 40.75(d)22, 47			
IAS 40.75(e)47			
IAS 40.75(f)(ii)39			
IAS 40.7647			
	IFRS 3.67(b)		
IFRIC	IFRS 3.67(c)		
VED IC 1 C	IEDS 2 67(d)		
IFRIC 1.6	IEDS 2 67(4)(i)		
IFRIC 1.8	IFPS 3 67(d)(ii)		
IFRIC 4.6	IEDC 2 67(A)		
IFRIC 8.11	IFRS 3.67(h)		
IFRS 2 Share-based Payments	IFRS 3.67(i)		
·	IFRS 3.70(a)		
IFRS 2.1029	IFRS 3.70(b)	34, 35	
IFRS 2.19	* *		
IFRS 2.2029			
IFRS 2.2129	IFRS 5 Non-cur		
IFRS 2.2729		Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations	
IFRS 2.2829			
IFRS 2.3030	IFRS 5.30	43	
IFRS 2.3230	IFRS 5.33(a)	10, 71	
IFRS 2.3330	IFRS 5.33(b)(i)	43	
IFRS 2.4429	IFRS 5.33(b)(iii)	43	
IFRS 2.4529	IFRS 5.33(c)	43	
IFRS 2.45(a)51, 52			
IFRS 2.45(b)52	IFRS 5.38	11, 13, 43, 59	
IFRS 2.45(c)52			
IFRS 2.45(d)52	<u> </u>		
IFRS 2.4651, 52			
IFRS 2.47(a)52	Disclosures (ear		
IFRS 2.47(a)(i)52	by the Group	III 4000)	
IFRS 2.47(a)(ii)52	IEDC 7 (	5.0	
IFRS 2.47(a)(iii)51	IFRS 7.6		
	IFRS 7.7	60	

IFRS 7.8(a)	11
IFRS 7.8(c)	11
IFRS 7.8(d)	11
IFRS 7.8(e)	11
IFRS 7.8(f)	11
IFRS 7.16	44, 57
IFRS 7.20(a)(ii)	13, 14, 59
IFRS 7.20(b)	39, 40
IFRS 7.20(a)(ii)	13, 14, 59
IFRS 7.23(c)	13, 14, 59
IFRS 7.21	25, 27
IFRS 7.22	69, 70
IFRS 7.22(a)	32
IFRS 7.22(b)	32
IFRS 7.23	69
IFRS 7.23(c)	13, 14, 59
IFRS 7.23(d)	59
IFRS 7.25	69
IFRS 7.26	69
IFRS 7.27	25, 69
IFRS 7.27(a)	31, 51
IFRS 7.27(b)	
IFRS 7.27(c)	51
IFRS 7.27(c)	
IFRS 7.33	66, 67 56, 57
IFRS 7.33	66, 67 56, 57 67
IFRS 7.33	

IFRS 8.27(a)	36
IFRS 8.28	37, 38
IFRS 8.33(a)	38
IFRS 8.33(b)	39
IFRS 8.34	38

## **About Ernst & Young**

Ernst & Young, a global leader in professional services, is committed to restoring the public's trust in professional services firms and in the quality of financial reporting. Its 114,000 people in 140 countries pursue the highest levels of integrity, quality, and professionalism in providing a range of sophisticated services centered on our core competencies of auditing, accounting, tax, and transactions. Further information about Ernst & Young and its approach to a variety of business issues can be found at www.ey.com/perspectives. Ernst & Young refers to the global organization of member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited does not provide services to clients.

### Disclaimer

This publication contains information in summary form and is therefore intended for general guidance only. It is not intended to be a substitute for detailed research or the exercise of professional judgment. Neither EYGM Limited nor any other member of the global Ernst & Young organization can accept any responsibility for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from action as a result of any material in this publication. On any specific matter, reference should be made to the appropriate advisor.

ERNST & YOUNG

www.ey.com